
  
 

APOPKA CITY COUNCIL AGENDA 
August 16, 2017 7:00 PM 

APOPKA CITY HALL COUNCIL CHAMBERS 

Agendas are subject to amendment through 

5:00pm on the day prior to City Council Meetings 

 
CALL TO ORDER 
INVOCATION - Bishop Kelvin L. Cobaris from the Impact Church of Apopka 
PLEDGE 
 
APPROVAL OF MINUTES: 

1. City Council workshop meeting July 10, 2017. 
2. City Council workshop meeting July 12, 2017. 
3. City Council special meeting July 20, 2017. 
4. City Council regular meeting August 2, 2017. 

 
AGENDA REVIEW: 
Presentations: 

1. Introduction of newly appointed Deputy Police Chief Randy Fernandez.  Chief McKinley 
2. Eagle Scout Project Proposal: Little Free Library Stations. Eagle Scout Candidate Michael Ihrig 
3. Eagle Scout Project Proposal: Dream Lake Park Paver Pathway & Picnic Tables. Eagle Scout Candidate Adam Speck 
4. Eagle Scout Project Proposal: Dream Lake Park Bridge. Eagle Scout Candidate Connor Larson 

 
PUBLIC COMMENT; STAFF RECOGNITION AND ACKNOWLEDGEMENT 
Public Comment Period:  
The Public Comment Period is for City-related issues that may or may not be on today’s Agenda. If you are here for a matter that 
requires a public hearing, please wait for that item to come up on the agenda. If you wish to address the Council, you must fill out an 
Intent to Speak form and provide it to the City Clerk prior to the start of the meeting. If you wish to speak during the Public Comment 
Period, please fill out a green-colored Intent-to-Speak form. If you wish to speak on a matter that requires a public hearing, please fill 
out a white-colored Intent-to-Speak form. Speaker forms may be completed up to 48 hours in advance of the Council meeting. Each 
speaker  will  have  four minutes to  give  remarks,  regardless  of  the  number  of  items  addressed.  Please refer to Resolution No. 
2016-16 for further information regarding our Public Participation Policy & Procedures for addressing the City Council. 
 
CONSENT (Action Item) 

1. Authorize execution of the Sewer and Water Capacity Agreement for Carriage Hill subdivision. 
2. Approve the serving of wine for a Wings & Wine event at the Museum of Apopkans. 
3. Approval for Alcohol Sales at the Summer BBQ Showdown & Steak Cookoff. 
4. Accept Notification of Application for the Edward Byrne Memorial Justice Assistance Grant Program. 

 
BUSINESS (Action Item) 

1. Acceptance of a Trails Grant and the required funding match for Kit Land Nelson Park. Shakenya Jackson 
2. Final Development Plan – Shoot Straight Warehouse Addition –1351 Tropicana Circle – Quasi-Judicial David Moon 
3. Plat – First Street Retail Center Plat (aka Tractor Supply Site) –180 East 1st Street – Quasi-Judicial David Moon 

 
PUBLIC HEARINGS/ORDINANCES/RESOLUTION (Action Item) 

1. Ordinance No. 2582 – First Reading – Banning medical marijuana dispensing facilities - Legislative David Moon 
2. Resolution No. 2017-15 - Wireless Facilities in the Public Rights-of-Way.  Mayor Kilsheimer 

 
CITY COUNCIL REPORTS 
 
MAYOR’S REPORT 
 
ADJOURNMENT 
 

1



  
 

 
 
 

MEETINGS AND UPCOMING EVENTS 

DATE TIME EVENT 

August 19, 2017  9:00am – 12:00pm PlayBall with MLB – Alonzo Williams Park  

August 22, 2017 5:30pm –  Council Special Meeting – Errol Estates 

August 28, 2017 10:00am – 11:00am Lake Apopka Natural Gas District Board Meeting: Winter Garden 

September 4, 2017 – Labor Day – City Offices Closed 

September 6, 2017 1:30pm –  City council Meeting 

September 7, 2017 5:30pm – 9:00pm Food Truck Round Up 

September 8, 2017 7:00pm – 8:30pm Movie at the Amphitheater – TBD – Northwest Recreation Complex 

September 11, 2017 6:30pm –  CONA Meeting – UCF Apopka Business Incubator 

September 12, 2017 5:30pm –  Planning Commission Meeting 

September 13, 2017 5:01pm – Budget First Reading & Public Hearing 

September 19, 2017 6:00pm –  Code Enforcement Hearing 

September 20, 2017 7:00pm –  Council Meeting 

September 25, 2017 10:00am – 11:00am Lake Apopka Natural Gas District Board Meeting: Winter Garden 

September 27, 2017 5:01pm –  Budget Second Reading & Adoption 

 
Individuals with disabilities needing assistance to participate in any of these proceedings should contact the City Clerk at least two (2) working days in 
advance of the meeting date and time at (407) 703-1704.  F.S. 286.0105 If a person decides to appeal any decision or recommendation made by 
Council with respect to any matter considered at this meeting, he will need record of the proceedings, and that for such purposes he may need to ensure 
that a verbatim record of the proceedings is made, which record includes the testimony and evidence upon which the appeal is to be based. 
 
Any opening invocation that is offered before the official start of the Council meeting shall be the voluntary offering of a private person, to and for the 
benefit of the Council.  The views or beliefs expressed by the invocation speaker have not been previously reviewed or approved by the City Council or 
the city staff, and the City is not allowed by law to endorse the religious or non-religious beliefs or views of such speaker.  Persons in attendance at the 
City Council meeting are invited to stand during the opening ceremony. However, such invitation shall not be construed as a demand, order, or any other 
type of command.  No person in attendance at the meeting shall be required to participate in any opening invocation that is offered or to participate in the 
Pledge of Allegiance.  You may remain seated within the City Council Chambers or exit the City Council Chambers and return upon completion of the 
opening invocation and/or Pledge of Allegiance if you do not wish to participate in or witness the opening invocation and/or the recitation of the Pledge of 
Allegiance. 
  

2



  
 

Backup material for agenda item: 

 

1. City Council workshop meeting July 10, 2017. 
  

3



CITY OF APOPKA 
 

Minutes of a City Council Budget Workshop held on July 10, 2017, at 3:00 p.m., in the 

City of Apopka Council Chambers. 

 

PRESENT:     Mayor Joe Kilsheimer 

Commissioner Billie Dean  

Commissioner Diane Velazquez  

Commissioner Kyle Becker  

Commissioner Doug Bankson  

Glenn Irby, City Administrator  

Pam Barclay, Finance Director 

 

PRESS PRESENT:   John Peery - The Apopka Chief 

Reggie Connell, The Apopka Voice 

 

 

CALL TO ORDER/PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE - Mayor Kilsheimer called the 

Budget Workshop to order at 3:00 p.m. and led in the Pledge of Allegiance. 

 

 

BUSINESS 

Mayor Kilsheimer advised this was the first budget workshop for Fiscal Year 2018. He said 

it was important for the operation of the city that all of the elected officials have a detailed 

knowledge of the budget to be able to answer questions within the community.  

 

Pam Barclay, Finance Director, said we would be using a format that summarizes what each 

department is responsible for and their accomplishments through this year, goals, and 

initiatives for the upcoming year. They will be addressing where their budget is compared to 

last year. She said this should streamline the process.  There will be an opportunity to ask 

each department head or division head any specific questions. She advised the budget is $121 

million, which is approximately $17 million over last year’s budget.  The General Fund is 

down from last year at $44.5 million, last year being $49 million.  The initial submissions by 

department heads for the budget was over $60 million for the General Fund. This budget has 

been trimmed down and Council is being presented a balanced budget. She affirmed the 

revenues have not increased substantially from last year. The millage rate was presented with 

maintaining the current millage. She advised that the proposed budget did eliminate all 

additional personnel requests and cut all capital with the exception of the construction of Fire 

Station 5.  

 

Glenn Irby, City Administrator, said he has been putting budgets together like this for 20 

years. He stated he noticed this year the budgets were not extravagant. He said we have 

machinery and vehicles that are wearing out because they are so old. Some police cars have 

over 100,000 miles. He stated this was the first time in his career that he faced all of his 

directors and had to tell them he could not give them any of these requests. He stated this was 

not sustainable and cannot continue the way it is.  

4



CITY OF APOPKA 

Minutes of a City Council Budget Workshop held on July 10, 2017, at 3:00 p.m. 

Page 2 of 4 

 

 

In response to Mayor Kilsheimer, Ms. Barclay advised the reserves was 21.6%, the same as 

last year.  

 

Mayor Kilsheimer said we have an austerity budget for the year. We will complete the 

projects we are committed to, such as Fire Station 5 with staffing and equipment. He stated 

they would hear Chief Carnesale ask for a Fire Station 6 and Florida Hospital is providing the 

basic infrastructure to host a Fire Station 6, but this balanced budget cannot pay for that.  

 

Commissioner Becker said with that in mind it is good to ask, what if?  If we do need to look 

at reserves, if we need to look at debt service, and what makes sense. He stated the generally 

accepted practice for reserves is two months of expense or 16.7% of expenditures. He said 

when we look at that, we are truly saying operating expenditures.  He pointed out if you take 

out the $742,000 capital outlay, you are closer to 23% reserved ratio. He stated if we take 

reserves down to 19.7% that frees up $1.3 million that could potentially be used for this 

budget. He affirmed that he was not saying we should do that but the potential is there.  He 

inquired if the revenues of the Marshall Lake property was reflected in these numbers.  

 

Mr. Irby advised it was not, as the city does not have those funds at this time. Ms. Barclay 

also reminded it had been determined those funds were not being added to the General Fund. 

 

Commissioner Bankson said he recently completed the Advanced Institute for Elected 

Municipal Officials (IEMO) class and said what they taught in this class supports having a 

higher reserve. He stated he was going to put this information together to provide to Council.  

He said once the City has that buffer, he will feel safe. If it goes down, there is a window to 

build it back up.  

 

Commissioner Velazquez pointed out that Apopka has been behind by not having the impact 

fees in the past that were recently approved.  

 

Ms. Barclay pointed out that reserves and cash flow are two different things. She advised 

there was over $50 million in the bank for cash flow. However, with the reserves, if you are 

looking at only the amount that can be spent for certain items, that is where we are constrained 

to the $9 million. 

 

In response to Commissioner Dean inquiring why the attorney fees were almost double this 

year, Mr. Irby advised the legal fees actually went down overall between this current fiscal 

year and next fiscal year. The reason why the City Attorney fees in particularly went up is 

because of all the items going through Community Development at this time. He advised 

there is revenue to offset that from the pass through collection from developers.  

 

MAYOR’S OFFICE 

The Mayor’s office budget was reviewed and discussed. 

 

Commissioner Bankson inquired as to the reason for the bottom line being affected, to which Ms. 

Barclay explained the OPEB (Other Post Employment Benefit) is included in the bottom line, but 

5



CITY OF APOPKA 

Minutes of a City Council Budget Workshop held on July 10, 2017, at 3:00 p.m. 

Page 3 of 4 

 

it is not something that is in the budget. This is foreseeing a liability the City will eventually have 

to pay when employees retire. 

 

In response to Mayor Kilsheimer inquiring if line item 1200 reflects the pensions we are paying 

to Commissioner Arrowsmith and Commissioner Williams, Ms. Barclay responded in the 

affirmative, and added this was included in several departments. 

 

Mayor Kilsheimer requested this number be reported on a separate line.  

 

Discussion ensued regarding the growth of the budget in terms of the growth of the city. Mayor 

Kilsheimer pointed out the dramatic increase of the budget relates to the wastewater plant that 

comes on board in September. He said under the Water Utility Fund, there have been twenty 

employees added due to going to a 24 hour operation at the wastewater plant. The General Fund 

budget has a 9.7% decrease.  

 

Ms. Barclay said the Mayor’s office shows an overall decrease of 1% and operating decreased 

11%.  

 

LEGAL SERVICES 

The Legal Services budget was reviewed and discussed. Discussion was held regarding 

specialized legal representation. 

 

ADMINISTRATIVE SERVICES 

Administrative Services budget was reviewed and discussed.  

 

Mr. Irby advised there was an overall decrease for the department of 46.2%. Operating 

expenses decreased by 78%. He pointed out the Community Outreach has been shifted. It 

previously included Event, PIO, and Grants.  Administration has absorbed Grants and PIO.  

Events has been moved to Recreation. Other adjustments for FY 2018 shows a decrease of 

$42,000 in lobbyist fees due to going with Gray Robinson. There is an increase for Apopka 

Youth Works of $10,000.  

 

CITY CLERK 

The City Clerk’s proposed budget was reviewed and discussed. Ms. Goff stated the Lien 

Searches have increased and this office coordinates approximately 450 to 500 searches per 

quarter at $35 per search. It was decided to research what other cities charge in lien search fees 

and determine if we need to amend our fee. Ms. Goff pointed out the increase in the City Clerk’s 

budget 3400 line is due to the election in 2018. We have budgeted additional funds for two 

polling places. The Supervisor of Elections has asked the Clerks to inquire if the municipalities 

wanted to pay for absentee ballot return postage. It was determined that Apopka would continue 

to have the voter pay the returned postage. Ms. Goff said at the last Council meeting it was 

suggested that we advertise Bids in multiple newspapers. If we are going to have additional legal 

advertising, line item 4902 will need to be increased. She advised we currently advertise bids in 

the Orlando Sentinel which is the regional newspaper for Central Florida. Bids are also put on 

Demand Star and the City’s website.  The other option would be to leave as is and do a budget 

amendment if we do additional advertising.  

6



CITY OF APOPKA 

Minutes of a City Council Budget Workshop held on July 10, 2017, at 3:00 p.m. 

Page 4 of 4 

 

 

Ms. Barclay recommended if this comes to fruition, that we do a budget amendment if additional 

funding is needed. 

 

FINANCIAL SERVICES 

Financial Services was reviewed and discussed. 

 

Ms. Barclay said the Finance Services overall budget increased by 2%. Operating expense 

increased approximately 2%. She advised there is a new requirement for GASB 75 wherein we 

will be required to do an actuarial study for pensions. Increase in audit services of $2,000, and 

Merchant Service fees increased $3,000. Finance handles purchasing, all bids, payroll, accounts 

payable and the regular accounting. She oversees utility billing, but this is covered by the Utility 

401 Funds budget.  This past year they implemented the new financial system and the city 

successfully converted to a new bank. Both awards were received for the CAFR and the Budget 

last year. She has a goal to promote P-card usage this year.  

 

In response to Commissioner Bankson, Ms. Barclay advised employee raises are merit based 

upon evaluations. 

 

Mayor Kilsheimer advised there were a number of employees that have maxed out for their 

salary scale and are no longer eligible to receive raises. Ms. Thornton advised the last salary 

survey was approximately 15 years ago. At the time cost of living increases were being given, 

the scale would be adjusted. The scale has not been adjusted for approximately 5 years. Ms. 

Thornton advised there is an RFP posted for a salary survey in the current year budget.  

 

HUMAN RESOURCES 

The Human Resources budget was reviewed and discussed. 

 

Ms. Thornton expressed concern in making sure they can get all the driver’s license checks done 

that supports our ISO rating and it also supports in the liability insurance. She requested an 

additional $5,000 in line item 3400 for this purpose.  She advised they have a new copier and the 

badge/access card system in their office. IT had been carrying the copier and badge/access card 

upkeep. This would be an additional $5,000 in the 5200 account. She discussed the deductibles 

and concern of going over the $700,000 allowed, stating she had requested $900,000. This is for 

liability, and workers comp deductibles. 

 

Mayor Kilsheimer read into the record from the summary sheet regarding Human Resources/Risk 

Management being understaffed. The general ratio of employees to human resource support is 

100/1 and they are carrying 219.5/1, not counting part-time, seasonal, or standby employees. One 

person is dedicated to all risk processes, which includes supporting 439 employees.  They have 

requested two clerks, one for each area of responsibility. He stated given the current revenue, this 

is something deemed the city cannot afford. He declared this was a dramatic need for this 

organization. 

 

Ms. Thornton said this has become a very hard burden to bear and it is only going to increase in 

their office. She stated the request for two clerks was relatively minor.  

7



CITY OF APOPKA 

Minutes of a City Council Budget Workshop held on July 10, 2017, at 3:00 p.m. 

Page 5 of 4 

 

 

The consensus was to add $200,000 for claims deductibles, $5,000 for copier and badge access, 

and $5,000 for driver license checks, as well as two clerk positions at $43,875 each (salary and 

benefits).  

 

Ms. Barclay said she would start a list on items being added back in the budget and Council can 

then decide if they are going to pull from reserves, increase the millage rate, or go out for a loan.  

 

Council recessed at 4:42 p.m. and reconvened at 4:50 p.m. 

 

INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY 

Information Technology was reviewed and discussed. 

 

Mr. Hippler said their overall operating expenses are up only 4% from last year. He advised 

there will be some cost savings from software we are no longer using. The Fire-cad is taking 

over a mapping software which was a large financial impact each year. Some of the costs are 

attributed to software support from Edmunds. Capital expenditures are down 11% from last year 

on the requests, but with the adjustments to balance, they lost everything in that particular line. 

He said some of the goals they were looking forward to was the Council Chamber audio/visual 

update. The existing system was initially purchased in 2005. There was a projector upgrade in 

2012. Part of this request was for streaming so to have the ability to place meetings on Apopka 

Television as well as the website.   

 

Ms. Barclay pointed out that there has always been a position for a supervisor in Information 

Technology. This position was failed to be included for the current fiscal year budget. The 

position was never filled when Mr. Hippler was promoted to IT Director. The number of 

positions should be 7 so to include this position.  

 

Mr. Hippler said the Clerk’s office was using one of the last two IMS applications for the 

cemetery. Building permits are set to go live in August or September.  The cemetery software 

through CIMS we looked at last year was coming in around $15,000 to $18,000 for the initial 

implementation. He said that would be one of the most needed software pieces. He also spoke 

of the switches throughout, stating some are ten plus years, the most critical being 

communication, city hall annex, and administration at recreation.  

 

Commissioner Becker inquired if we are able to get completely off of IMS, would the $13,000 

in IMS potentially go away and be replaced by $18,000 for the new cemetery system, which 

would be a net impact of $5,000. 

 

Mr. Hippler responded in the affirmative.  

 

Discussion ensued regarding the possibility of having the entire city under one cellular company.  

 

Discussion ensued regarding the two databases utilized: Contentverse and Laserfiche. Mr. 

Hippler advised Contentverse has zero value with regards to the ability to search. The option of 

Laserfiche has the ability to search documents. We would need to purchase additional licenses 

8



CITY OF APOPKA 

Minutes of a City Council Budget Workshop held on July 10, 2017, at 3:00 p.m. 

Page 6 of 4 

 

if converting over to Laserfiche.  

 

Discussion was held regarding Council Chambers Audio/Video Equipment for the purpose of 

streaming. It was pointed out the presentations on the screen are hard to see at times. It was 

suggested that the audio/visual be done in phases.  

 

It was the consensus to add in the $18,000 for Cemetery Software, potentially getting off IMS. 

It was the consensus to take the approach of phasing in for the Council Chambers Audio/Video 

Equipment.  

 

ADJOURNMENT - There being no further discussion, the workshop adjourned at 5:49 

p.m. 

 

 

       _____________________________ 

       Joseph E. Kilsheimer, Mayor 

ATTEST; 

 

____________________________ 

Linda F. Goff, City Clerk 

9



  
 

Backup material for agenda item: 

 

2. City Council workshop meeting July 12, 2017. 
  

10



CITY OF APOPKA 
 

Minutes of a City Council Budget Workshop held on July 12, 2017, at 3:00 p.m., in the 

City of Apopka Council Chambers. 

 

PRESENT:     Mayor Joe Kilsheimer 

Commissioner Billie Dean  

Commissioner Diane Velazquez  

Commissioner Kyle Becker  

Commissioner Doug Bankson  

Glenn Irby, City Administrator  

Pam Barclay, Finance Director 

 

PRESS PRESENT:   John Peery - The Apopka Chief 

Reggie Connell, The Apopka Voice 

 

 

CALL TO ORDER/PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE - Mayor Kilsheimer called the 

Budget Workshop to order at 3:00 p.m. and led in the Pledge of Allegiance. 

 

BUSINESS 

 

COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 

The budget for Community Development was reviewed and discussed. 

 

Jim Hitt, Community Development Director, reviewed the summary sheet for Planning, Zoning, 

Building, and Engineering Divisions. He will also cover the CRA.  Accomplishments include the 

initiation of a re-write of the Land Development Code (LDC) for completion in 2018.  Two major 

items that were completed are the mixed-use DRI/Kelly Park Interchange zoning district and the 

associated Form-Based Code. The CRA Redevelopment Plan Update for 2017 was completed. 

The Fifth Street Parking Lot Agreement to purchase by the CRA is being completed and budget 

approved. The redevelopment of this is in the 2018 budget. He advised they have hired a new 

City Engineer. He stated the permits are up, they had 5,394 permits in 2017, which is a 12% 

increase.  Inspections are at 15,465, which is a 10.5% increase. He said the inspections are done 

by three employees. Goals included: maintain compliance with current codes and ordinances as 

provided by City Council; process the development and redevelopment plans in a reasonable 

manner for the type of review and process required;. continue to provide excellent services and 

up to date information to the public; complete accurate impact fee and engineering related items 

for private and public projects, initiate a new CRA Plan and associated projects in accordance 

with the available funding levels; initiate a new economic development website for the City of 

Apopka and include statistical information and portals for Realtors with properties to develop; 

complete the redevelopment of the Fifth Street parking lot; the Station Street project will be part 

of the 2018 budget; City Center project plan processing and initial construction phases, design 

and construction of the Sixth Street promenade; phase one from Central to Forest and phase two 

from Forest to City Center, and initiate the design and construction of the Lake Apopka Research 

Center (LARC), innovation district. 

11



CITY OF APOPKA 

Minutes of a City Council Budget Workshop held on July 12, 2017, at 3:00 p.m. 

Page 2 of 4 

 

Mr. Hitt said they had 18 positions funded and explained they made a minor change from a 

Planner II to an entry level Senior Planner.  He advised they have finished their new business 

checklist and this is on the City’s website. They are working on updating forms.  

 

Building Division 

Mr. Hitt advised the Building portion of the budget is approximately $7,800 less. The Building 

Division has one building official and he does all plans review. They have three inspectors, and 

three permit clerks/technicians. 

 

Planning Division 

Mr. Hitt advised he had requested a Senior Planner, Planning Assistant, and a Plans Processing 

Coordinator. He stated out of those positions, since he is reclassifying the Planner II position to 

a Senior Planner, if he can get at least one more Planner, this would suffice for one year. He 

advised with regards to the Economic Development position, he will need to re-advertise.  

 

Mayor Kilsheimer said since it is a struggle to fill the Economic Development positions, would 

it be a higher priority to reclassify this existing position to a Senior Planner position. Mr. Hitt said 

he felt this could work, as he can handle the CRA.  

 

Discussion was held regarding various studies. Mr. Hitt advised the update for the LDC is 

professional services and we have to do that as part of the Clarion contract.  The only other part 

there is the East Shore Activity Hub Master Plan which is the ecotourism and vital to keep a long 

term revenue stream.  

 

In response to Commissioner Dean questioning the training, Mr. Hitt advised these were 

necessary for accreditation and/or certification. He stated this was budgeted at the very minimal 

level. 

 

Requested positions were discussed.  Mr. Hitt said he had requested a Plans Examiner, two 

Inspectors, two Permit Clerks, and Secretary.  He said the least he would like to see approved is 

a Plans Examiner, one Inspector, and one Permit Clerk.  He pointed out their processed permits 

were up 11% from the prior year. Inspections are up 10.5%.  

 

Mr. Irby advised the revenues being generated, extrapolated through September 30, 2017, brings 

in a total of $10,723,763, but the only amount of this that is segregated for the General Fund is 

$2,436,918, stating the rest are impact fees.  

 

It was the consensus to reclassify the Economic Development position to a Senior Planner or 

Planner II. 

 

Council recessed at 4:18 p.m. and reconvened at 4:24 p.m. 

 

COMMUNITY REDEVEOPMENT AGENCY (CRA) 

Mr. Hitt advised in June the City Council approved adding funds to the Fifth Street Parking Lot 

purchase and design funding for the Station Street project and CRA programs. He advised they 

are looking at utilizing $1.9 million to get the downtown area going. He advised approximately 

12



CITY OF APOPKA 

Minutes of a City Council Budget Workshop held on July 12, 2017, at 3:00 p.m. 

Page 3 of 4 

 

$50,000 of this will go towards wayfinding signage, or directional signs.  

 

Mayor Kilsheimer said the Museum needed to be included in the wayfinding signage.  

 

Mr. Hitt said the original CRA Plan was done in 1993 and he advised there were ways to improve 

a CRA Plan. It does not have to be adopted on both slum and blight, stating our plan was adopted 

on blight. He said to address affordable housing, one of the things we did was the impact fee 

assistance program. Another item in our plan is items to make a neighborhood friendly in regards 

to streetscape, sidewalks, and infrastructure. He said the city’s CRA plan was working towards 

helping affordable housing with the projects and programs outlined in the CRA Plan. He declared 

that the city has a good CRA Plan and a lot of good projects included.  

 

RECREATION 

The Recreation Department’s budget was reviewed and discussed.   

 

Athletic Complexes 

Lorena Potter, Acting Recreation Director, said the Athletic Complexes included the Grounds 

Division that takes care of the NW Complex and also some of the grounds at AAC and Alonzo 

Williams Park. She said some of the parks are taken care of by Public Services and some are 

under Recreation. This division does all of the field prep for tournaments, Little League, 

Recreation Soccer, and they help maintain AAC as well as Alonzo Williams Park. She said the 

three divisions work together and look for ways within their budget to improve the three 

complexes. She stated they have been having some turf issues and they are working with the 

University of Florida, Tom McCubbin, and TruGreen. They are looking at different ways to 

maintain the turf in an economically feasible manner.  She advised there is an overall decrease of 

12% for this division.  She advised they have requested to increase the part-time staff wages to 

$10.00/hour.  She reviewed the accomplishments and advised they have new equipment through 

a lease program which has helped. New batting cages were built in-house and improvements 

were made to the bullpens.  

 

Discussion was held regarding the use of the fields by the various groups and how difficult it is 

to rest the fields.  

 

Recreation Athletics 

The Recreation Athletics was reviewed and discussed. Ms. Potter advised the scoreboards are 

due to be completed by the end of July.  The company is to obtain sponsorships through their 

marketing group.  This division is the recreation aspect that does the athletic programming at 

the park. She advised we service a larger area than just Apopka. They just completed a youth 

basketball program and they hope to expand and continue this program. She advised they are 

working to utilize other fields throughout the city. She advised there was an overall increase in 

this budget of 4%. She was requesting a cashier/customer service clerk that was cut.  She said it 

would be nice to have someone to answer the phones rather than to rely on the people that are 

doing the programing.  It was suggested that they utilize voice mail.  She advised there is a 

concession contract during Little League and Soccer and he pays 15% of sales to the city.  

 

 

13



CITY OF APOPKA 

Minutes of a City Council Budget Workshop held on July 12, 2017, at 3:00 p.m. 

Page 4 of 4 

 

Recreation Programs 

The Recreation Programs division was reviewed and discussed. Ms. Potter said this was for 

activities and events. The goals are to continue to provide quality programing and events to the 

citizens of Apopka. She advised Events was previously under Community Outreach and merged 

with Recreation Programs to explain the large increases for this budget year. This division does 

the summer camp for children, senior programs, community events such as Halloween in the 

park, Memorial Day, Winter Wonderland, Tree Lighting, and now they have incorporated the 

larger events such as Outdoor Festival, Symphony under the Stars, and Fourth of July. She stated 

they would like to increase activities at Alonzo Williams Park, Fran Carlton Center, Kit Land 

Nelson Park, and the NW Recreation Complex.  She said the Splash Pad is to be completed 

around February 2018. Alonzo Williams rebuild is to be completed in 2018. She spoke of the 

additional items and staffing that will be required with the opening of the Splash Pad, as well as 

staffing requirements when Alonzo Williams Park is completed.   

 

Ms. Potter said one item that is badly needed is a new golf cart with the second seat and the bed 

in the back.  They also need a shade structure for the Lake Avenue Park Playground.  

 

Discussion was held regarding the three large events, Old Florida Outdoor Festival (OFOF), 

Symphony under the Stars, and Fourth of July. Ms. Potter recommended the OFOF be a one day 

event, starting later in the day, then the concert that evening.  

 

Mayor Kilsheimer said he would like to see the City hold three major events, February Concert 

to coincide with the OFOF, Symphony under the Stars, and Fourth of July.  

 

Commissioner Bankson suggested moving these events to a premiere sponsorship to take over 

the events.  

 

Mayor Kilsheimer said this year it was too late to move in that direction,  

 

It was the consensus to add a Splash Pad Attendant back in the budget.  Lorena was asked to 

research a used golf cart and see if she can work it into her current budget year.  

 

ADJOURNMENT - There being no further discussion, the workshop adjourned at 5:49 p.m. 

 

 

       _____________________________ 

       Joseph E. Kilsheimer, Mayor 

ATTEST; 

 
____________________________ 

Linda F. Goff, City Clerk 

14



  
 

Backup material for agenda item: 

 

3. City Council special meeting July 20, 2017. 
  

15



CITY OF APOPKA 
 

Minutes of a City Council Special meeting held on July 20, 2017, immediately following 

the Budget Workshop, in the City of Apopka Council Chambers. 

 

PRESENT:    Mayor Joe Kilsheimer 

Commissioner Billie Dean 

Commissioner Diane Velazquez 

Commissioner Kyle Becker 

Commissioner Doug Bankson 

Glenn Irby, City Administrator 

Pam Barclay, Finance Director 

 

PRESS PRESENT:    John Peery - The Apopka Chief 

Reggie Connell, The Apopka Voice 

 

CALL TO ORDER - Mayor Kilsheimer called the Special Council meeting to order at 

7:18 p.m. 

 

SPECIAL REPORTS AND PUBLIC HEARINGS 

 

Mayor Kilsheimer said in accordance with the truth in millage requirements, the City must set 

the proposed millage rate and advise the property appraiser of the proposed millage rate, roll 

back rate, date, time, and place of the tentative budget hearing. The proposed millage rate is 

3.7876, unchanged from last year. The roll back millage rate is 3.4093. The tentative budget 

hearing is scheduled for Wednesday, September 13, 2017 at 5:01 p.m. in the Council 

Chambers. 

 

Mayor Kilsheimer opened the meeting to public comment. 

 

Linda Laurendeau said she believed public safety was the absolute highest and most important 

thing we do. She stated both of our public safety agencies work on a shoestring. She said as a 

former firefighter and EMT in Texas, she knows what it is to work on a shoestring, and what it 

is to adhere to a sign that stated “We have done so much with so little for so long that we can 

now do almost anything with nothing.” She declared this is what these agencies do, and as a 

member of the Citizen Police Alumni, she sees the cars used on the streets by these agencies. 

She said she firmly believes that anything public safety wants they should have, and then 

eviscerate everything else. She stated the temporary facility at the Hospital was imperative. She 

said the ISO-1 rating should never be an issue. She stated we were the 5th city in the State and 

the 49th in the United States to obtain the ISO-1 rating. 

 

Suzanne Kidd said this was the third year in a row she sat through every budget workshop and 

watched Council struggle to try and figure out how to do more with less while the growth of this 

City rapidly continues. She stated she looks at the cities such as Winter Garden and Ocoee that 

we are competing with directly. She said there was an area on Plant Street by 429 that was being 

cleared to create a new industrial center that will serve those two cities. She said for the last ten 

16



CITY OF APOPKA 
Minutes of a City Council special meeting held on July 20, 2017, at 7:18 p.m. 

Page 2 

 

to fifteen years Ocoee and Winter Garden have been leaving us in the dust. Winter Garden has 

kept a millage rate of 4.25% since 2011. They have close to the same population as Apopka, and 

she declared this millage has given them an advantage. When people compare Apopka to the 

services and amenities of Winter Garden, they have a valid point. She stated Council went into 

debt financing and reserves today, but what they didn’t touch was millage. She said last year she 

mentioned the median home taxable value in Apopka was about $160,000. She stated taking into 

account there was an 8% increase in property values in Orange County this year, that figure may 

now be at $173,000 as the median point. The amount of tax based on the $160,000 last year was 

approximately $606 in taxes. If we had increased our millage rate by three tenths of a mill this 

year, the increase to a property owner would be about $101 per year ($8.40 per month).  She 

declared people spend money on a lot of things and the very small amount extra that would have 

given the City so many more of the needs by the various departments is lacking because of that 

one extra step not being taken. She understands Council has a hard job in this, but they are the 

ones elected to make these difficult decisions. She affirmed she was disappointed they did not 

take that one extra step to set us up for success. She thanked Council for what they did and how 

hard they do work.  

 

MOTION by Commissioner Becker, and seconded by Commissioner Velazquez, to set 

the tentative millage rate at 3.7876.  

 

Commissioner Becker said we have a salary study coming that will likely increase operating 

expense across every division within the City, and there are non-safety capital needs that are in 

dire need. He stated he can agree an increase in millage would be a valuable tool and getting 

the reserve balance to a place where they can then defend it long term. He said with the 

homestead exemption possibly coming next year, he was not opposed to an increase and would 

consider this in the next budget season.  

 

Commissioner Bankson said he was disappointed we were not setting a standard for where we 

need to get to and not taking those discussions of how they can get there. He stated this was an 

unsustainable path.  

 

Mayor Kilsheimer said Commissioner Bankson brought something to the table that the 

community deserves to discuss, but they were just not there yet as a community to be able to 

afford what he wants to do.  

 

Motion carried 4/1 with Mayor Kilsheimer, and Commissioners Dean, Velazquez and 

Becker voting aye, and Commissioner Bankson voting nay. 
 

ADJOURNMENT - There being no further business, the meeting adjourned at 7:34 p.m. 

 

 

       _______________________________ 

ATTEST;      Joseph E. Kilsheimer, Mayor 

 

________________________________ 
Linda F. Goff, City Clerk 

17



  
 

Backup material for agenda item: 

 

4. City Council regular meeting August 2, 2017. 
  

18



CITY OF APOPKA 

 

Minutes of the City Council regular meeting held on August 2, 2017, at 1:30 p.m., in the City of 

Apopka Council Chambers. 

 

PRESENT:   Mayor Joe Kilsheimer 

   Commissioner Billie Dean 

Commissioner Diane Velazquez 

Commissioner Doug Bankson 

Commissioner Kyle Becker 

City Attorney Cliff Shepard 

City Administrator Glenn Irby 

 

PRESS PRESENT:  Teresa Sargeant - The Apopka Chief 

    Steve Hudak, Orlando Sentinel 

    Reggie Connell, The Apopka Voice 

 

INVOCATION:  Mayor Kilsheimer introduced Pastor Darrell Morgan of Word of Life Church, who 

gave the invocation. 

 

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE: Mayor Kilsheimer said on July 30, 1964, the Apopka City Council 

held a special meeting to discuss the purchase of the Apopka Elementary School property for a new 

City Hall. Mayor Land proposed to renovate the red building for use as the new City Hall and utilize 

the gymnasium for community clubs and functions. The Council voted unanimously to proceed with 

the purchase of this property. The red building was renovated and is still in use today as our City 

Hall, and the gymnasium was later renovated to expand City Hall office space, and include the 

construction of our current Council Chambers. He asked everyone to pay homage to the history of 

our City Hall and its role in the former site of the Apopka Elementary School as he led in the Pledge 

of Allegiance.  

 

APPROVAL OF MINUTES: 

1. City Council workshop meeting June 1, 2017. 

2. City Council meeting July 5, 2017. 

3. City Council meeting July 19, 2017. 

 

Commissioner Bankson made note of a correction to the July 19, 2017 minutes to change “Mayor” 

to “Commissioner” Bankson on page four.  

 

MOTION by Commissioner Bankson, and seconded by Commissioner Becker to approve City 

Council minutes of June 1, 2017, July 5, 2017, and July 19, 2017 with correction as noted. 

Motion carried unanimously with Mayor Kilsheimer, and Commissioners Velazquez, Becker, 

and Bankson voting aye.  

 

AGENDA REVIEW:  There were no changes. 

 

Presentations: 

1. Chief Carnesale introduced the nineteen new Firefighters for Fire Station No. 5. He said the hiring 

process began in March with more than 300 applicants who went through a written test, physical 
19



CITY OF APOPKA 
Minutes of a City Council regular meeting held on August 2, 2017, at 1:30 p.m. 

Page 2 

 

agility test and from these tests the number was narrowed to 72 applicants that were interviewed. 

This group started orientation and training five weeks ago at the Gilliam Training Center. He 

stated they graduate this Friday evening at the Apopka Community Center.  Each firefighter stood 

as they were introduced: Ryan Bennett, Rommel Bennett, Hector Cartagena, Trelycia Darlington, 

Stephen DeMatties, Zachary Fertic, Riley Fertic, Jon Force, Tremonte Flowers, Donald Lampp, 

Jennifer Raulerson, Luis Rivera, Jack Timmes, Giovanny Ruiz, Brian Sharbono, Ross Shiffrin, 

Brittany Smothers, Nick Stucker, and Tyler Whitaker, 

 

Mayor Kilsheimer welcomed all the new hires and said he has had an opportunity to speak with this 

group. They were attracted to Apopka by the family atmosphere, potential, and the high standards our 

Fire Department has with the ISO-1 rating.  

 

PUBLIC COMMENT/STAFF RECOGNITION AND ACKNOWLEDGEMENT 

Public Comment: 

Ray Shackelford congratulated the new firefighters. He said Commissioner Bankson gave an 

outstanding presentation at the last Council meeting for a 25% reserve fund balance in five years. He 

asked Council to consider a five year plan for a 25% reserve fund balance. He also commended City 

Council for moving forward on the Splash Pad. He stated he appreciated the Council member’s 

commitment and sacrifices to serve the people of Apopka. 

 

CONSENT (Action Item) 

1. Approve the purchase of seven Motorola portable radios for the Police Department. 

2. Approve the purchase of a digital evidence management software suite for use in the Police 

Departments Forensics Unit. 

 

MOTION by Commissioner Velazquez, and seconded by Commissioner Becker, to approve two 

items on the Consent Agenda.  Motion carried unanimously with Mayor Kilsheimer, and 

Commissioners Dean, Velazquez, Becker, and Bankson voting aye. 

 

BUSINESS 

1. Further evaluation of a Splash Pad RFP submittal and waiver of a non-material 

irregularity. 

Glenn Irby, City Administrator, said this was the second attempt to obtain bids for a design build 

for a Splash Pad in Kit Land Nelson Park. The first attempt earlier in the year received no bids 

and this time there were two bids received from Ryan Fitzgerald Construction, and AccuTech 

Construction. He advised the total budget for this project is $750,000 which incorporates the 

Splash Pad, Restroom Facility, and payment to the Splash Pad design engineer. He stated both of 

the products these companies designed and submitted are well over our budget. He said the 

request to Council was to waive a non-material irregularity, stating one of the companies was four 

minutes late submitting their bid, and secondly to direct and allow staff to further evaluate 

AccuTech Construction’s proposal  and come up with a final design within the budget. He stated 

this will be brought back to Council for final approval.  

 

Commissioner Bankson said he would be abstaining since his brother works for AccuTech 

Construction.  

 

Discussion ensued regarding the total budget for this project. 

 
20



CITY OF APOPKA 
Minutes of a City Council regular meeting held on August 2, 2017, at 1:30 p.m. 

Page 3 

 

Mr. Irby explained that $750,000 was the total amount for the project, and stated $112,910 was 

for the restroom facility, and $24,000 was payment to the Splash Pad Engineer, leaving $613,000 

for the Splash Pad Design/Build and Amenities.  

 

Commissioner Becker inquired if either of the companies have previously designed/built splash 

pads and will the City get a good product by compromising some of the features to bring the 

project into budget. 

 

Gary Kreisler, AccuTech Construction, said from the research he has done and what he has seen 

from the industry partners, neither of the general contractors who are the prime on both of these 

have done a splash pad. He stated both companies are experienced and from Apopka. He stated 

AccuTech Construction went very deep in selecting their partners to make sure each one of the 

providers that will be doing the actual work of installing the splash pad have an extreme long 

history and experience of providing splash pads and working together. He said they feel extremely 

well qualified and are excited to have attracted the best partners to work with. He stated in relation 

to the price, they were very transparent in what they put in and their proposal showed all the 

different features and their price reflected that. They knew they were above budget, but wanted 

to show the City they had options with the ability to leave items out. The City will have the ability 

to add features as their budget allows. He advised they utilize as many local providers/workers as 

possible. 

 

Ryan Fitzgerald, Ryan Fitzgerald Construction, said he and his wife were graduates of Apopka 

High School and his children graduated from Apopka High School. He stated he does a lot of 

work for University of Florida. He advised their company is handling all of the MREC work out 

of Apopka all over the United States, including Puerto Rico. In the last year they have done 

approximately $1.5 million in playground installations. He said he also received proposals from 

a couple of the same companies on the splash pad, but he didn’t present them as they were over 

$130,000 more expensive.  He stated this was the widest open written RFP that he has ever 

participated in. The manufacturer he provided was the least expensive. He said he could provide 

a very different vehicle to spray water with $130,000 budget to do so.  He reiterated his 

presentation was very much a discounted presentation. He said not to have the chance to present 

his side, and none of his providers have been contacted, he did not see how a motion could be 

made. He declared in all the projects he had bid on, he has never seen one allowed after it was 

four minutes late. He stated he has never put in an actual spray pad, but he has put in tennis courts, 

racquetball courts, swings, and he could hire the same company to do the same installation.  

 

Mr. Irby said the City put out an RFP, had two companies respond, and the evaluation committee 

went by what they responded and made their selection as a group.  

 

Mayor Kilsheimer said staff has presented Council with their recommendation, and he would give 

staff credit for trying to find the best deal for the City and move this project forward.  

 

Commissioner Becker said when you are doing a comparison like this, you are comparing one 

company to the other for the purposes of what is in front of you. He asked Mr. Irby if he could 

address where this was picked up on with AccuTech versus Fitzgerald. 

 

 

21



CITY OF APOPKA 
Minutes of a City Council regular meeting held on August 2, 2017, at 1:30 p.m. 

Page 4 

 

Mr. Irby said it was basically on the presentation. He stated they do have the ability as a group to 

ask them one on one to come in and make presentations. They did not feel it was necessary this 

time and the selection was made solely based on what was presented in the packet.  

 

MOTION by Commissioner Becker, and seconded by Commissioner Velazquez, based on 

staff recommendation, to approve a waiver of an irregularity of late submittal of AccuTech 

Construction, Inc. and approve staff to further evaluate their proposal. Motion carried 4-

0-1 with Mayor Kilsheimer, and Commissioners Dean, Velazquez, and Becker voting aye. 

Commissioner Bankson abstained stating his brother worked for the company. 

 

2. Approval of the second Mayor Land Statue and final payment to the artist. 

Glenn Irby, City Administrator, said the standing statue of Mayor Land for the front of City Hall 

should be here any day. Two statues were commissioned to be completed by the foundry.  The 

second statue is of a sitting statue for Kit Land Nelson Park. The Land Family has signed a 

document approving the design. The recommendation is for Council to approve sending the 

second cast to the foundry and authorize final payment to the artist.  

 

Peter Pasha, Artist, said Ms. Betty Land visited the studio a couple of weeks ago and noticed 

wedding rings on the hand of the statue of Mayor Land. Catherine Land-Waters had not seen the 

statue and she and Ms. Betty Land came to the studio for her to see the statue, bringing Mr. Eric 

Hooper, a personal friend of Mayor Land’s with them. Mr. Pasha said the first thing Mr. Hooper 

said was “Well there he is, you got him.”  Mr. Pasha thanked the Mayor and Commissioners for 

coming by to see the statue.  

 

MOTION by Commissioner Bankson, and seconded by Commissioner Velazquez, to 

approve placement of the second Mayor Land statue and final payment to the artist. Motion 

carried unanimously with Mayor Kilsheimer, and Commissioners Dean, Velazquez, Becker, 

and Bankson voting aye. 

 

3. Final Development Plan/Plat – Carriage Hill Residential Subdivision – 2303 Rogers Road. 

Mayor Kilsheimer announced this was a quasi-judicial hearing.  The witnesses were sworn in by 

the clerk. 

 

David Moon, Planning Manager, said the request was to approve the Final Development Plan and 

Plat for the Carriage Hill Residential Subdivision. The project is located on the north side of 

Rogers Road, abutting the current Lester Ridge residential community. City Council approved 

the Preliminary Development Plan on December 13, 2016, and the Planning Commission 

reviewed the Plat on July 25, 2017, recommending approval.  DRC recommends approval. The 

project includes 72 single-family lots and is consistent with the Land Development Code.  

 

Mayor Kilsheimer opened the meeting to a public hearing. No one wishing to speak, he closed 

the public hearing. 

 

MOTION by Commissioner Bankson, and seconded by Commissioner Becker, to approve 

the Final Development Plan/Plat for Carriage Hill Residential Subdivision. Motion carried 

unanimously with Mayor Kilsheimer, and Commissioners Dean, Velazquez, Becker, and 

Bankson voting aye. 

22



CITY OF APOPKA 
Minutes of a City Council regular meeting held on August 2, 2017, at 1:30 p.m. 

Page 5 

 

 

PUBLIC HEARINGS/ORDINANCES/RESOLUTIONS (Action Item) 

 

1. Resolution No. 2017-12 – Approval of the Orange County Local Mitigation Strategy 2016.  

The City Clerk read the title as follows: 

 

RESOLUTION NO. 2017-12 

 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF APOPKA, 

FLORIDA, ACCEPTING AND APPROVING THE DESIGNATED 

PORTION OF THE ORANGE COUNTY LOCAL MITIGATION 

STRATEGY. 

 

Sean Wylam, Assistant Fire Chief, Training, said the City of Apopka has the potential to be 

threatened by natural and manmade disasters. He advised a group of agencies, including 

representatives from the City of Apopka, joined together to establish a Local Mitigation Strategy 

workgroup. On February 1, 2017, the Orange County Board of Commissioners adopted the 

updated Local Mitigation Strategy, which is being presented.  This allows the City to proceed 

forward post-disaster for different mitigation projects and seek funding.  

 

Mayor Kilsheimer opened the meeting to a public hearing. No one wishing to speak, he closed 

the public hearing.  

 

MOTION by Commissioner Velazquez, and seconded by Commissioner Becker, to approve 

Resolution No. 2017-12. Motion carried unanimously with Mayor Kilsheimer, and 

Commissioners Dean, Velazquez, Becker, and Bankson voting aye. 

 

2. Resolution No. 2017-13 - Issuance and execution of a $2,400,000 Capital Improvement 

Revenue Note. The City Clerk read the title as follows: 

 

RESOLUTION NO. 2017-13 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY OF APOPKA, FLORIDA ACCEPTING 

THE PROPOSAL OF ZB, N.A. TO PURCHASE THE CITY'S $2,400,000 

CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT REVENUE NOTE, SERIES 2017, TO 

FINANCE THE CITY'S COST OF ACQUIRING VEHICLES AND 

ASSOCIATED EQUIPMENT ALL FOR CITY PURPOSES; 

AUTHORIZING THE EXECUTION AND DELIVERY OF A LOAN 

AGREEMENT WITH SAID BANK TO SECURE THE REPAYMENT OF 

THE 2017 NOTE; PROVIDING FOR THE PAYMENT OF THE 2017 NOTE 

FROM THE CITY'S COVENANT TO BUDGET AND APPROPRIATE 

NON AD VALOREM REVENUES, ALL AS PROVIDED IN THE LOAN 

AGREEMENT; AUTHORIZING THE PROPER OFFICIALS OF THE 

CITY TO DO ANY OTHER ADDITIONAL THINGS DEEMED 

NECESSARY OR ADVISABLE IN CONNECTION WITH THE 

EXECUTION OF THE LOAN AGREEMENT, THE 2017 NOTE, AND THE 

SECURITY THEREFORE; DESIGNATING THE 2017 NOTE AS “BANK 

QUALIFIED”; AUTHORIZING THE EXECUTION AND DELIVERY OF 
23



CITY OF APOPKA 
Minutes of a City Council regular meeting held on August 2, 2017, at 1:30 p.m. 

Page 6 

 

OTHER DOCUMENTS IN CONNECTION WITH THE 2017 NOTE; 

PROVIDING FOR SEVERABILITY; AND PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE 

DATE. 

Pam Barclay, Director of Finance, said this resolution was for the issuance and execution of a 

five year capital revenue note in the amount of $2.4 million. She advised in June our Finance 

Advisor sent out an RFP to solicit bids and quotes from banks to offer the best interest rate on a 

three year or five year note. We received eleven responses and the Financial Advisor has ranked 

these.  His recommendation is to accept Zion Bank’s proposal of 1.87% for a five year note.  

 

Mayor Kilsheimer opened the meeting to a public hearing. No one wishing to speak, he closed 

the public hearing.  

 

MOTION by Commissioner Becker, and seconded by Commissioner Bankson, to approve 

Resolution No. 2017-13. Motion carried unanimously with Mayor Kilsheimer, and 

Commissioners Dean, Velazquez, Becker, and Bankson voting aye. 

 

3. Resolution No. 2017-14 - Purchasing Policy Update.  The City Clerk read the title as follows: 

 

RESOLUTION NO. 2017-14 

 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF APOPKA, 

FLORIDA, AMENDING CITY ADMINISTRATIVE POLICIES FOR 

PROCUREMENT; AND PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 

Cliff Shepard, City Attorney, said we earlier discussed the splash pad issue. One of the unique 

factors that came into play is that we had had a first compliant RFP under the Competitive 

Consultants Negotiation Act (CCNA) and received no responses.  The second RFP only received 

two responses. Under the CCNA it calls for, in a design build or a regular RFP that you would 

select and then begin discussions about ranking and negotiation with a minimum of three, but it 

does not address what to do if you cannot get three responses. This issue came up and he inquired 

what other cities had done and found that they placed language in their purchasing policies that 

when you cannot get three proposals, pursuant to making your best efforts, that you would be able 

to proceed with the best of those received. He explained that this policy is retroactive so to go 

back to the time prior to these bids being received, but before any negotiations will take place. 

 

In response to Commissioner Becker inquiring if the level of scrutiny falls on Council, City 

Attorney Shepard responded in the affirmative.  

 

Mayor Kilsheimer opened the meeting to a public hearing. No one wishing to speak, he closed 

the public hearing.  

 

MOTION by Commissioner Velazquez, and seconded by Commissioner Becker, to approve 

Resolution No. 2017-14. Motion carried unanimously with Mayor Kilsheimer, and 

Commissioners Dean, Velazquez, Becker, and Bankson voting aye. 

 

CITY COUNCIL REPORTS – There were no reports. 

 
24



CITY OF APOPKA 
Minutes of a City Council regular meeting held on August 2, 2017, at 1:30 p.m. 

Page 7 

 

MAYOR’S REPORT – Mayor Kilsheimer said there has been discussion at the Council level a 

number of times on the Apopka Begins and Ends with A program. It had been said, one of the ways 

the program would be measured was how much resources were actually brought into the community 

as a result of the program.  He stated he was pleased to announce being notified on Tuesday evening 

that Phillis Wheatley Elementary School and Zellwood Elementary School have been awarded a 21st 

Century Grant. Combined, the award of this 21st Century Grant will result in $780,000 being spent 

at these two schools over the next three years. He declared it is a direct result of the opportunities 

that arose during the discussions at the Community Action Team meetings at these two schools.  Both 

Phillis Wheatley and Zellwood, at the time of the application were “D” schools. Zellwood has come 

up to a “C” school.  These are grant funds awarded by the State Department of Education using 

Federal Funds to invest money in schools where additional opportunities are needed for tutoring and 

after school programs.  

 

Commissioner Dean said he was glad this grant was awarded, but stated the City does not have money 

to help support Apopka Begins and Ends with A.  

 

NOT REQUIRING ACTION 

1.   Thank you letter from a resident to the Public Services, Water Treatment & Maintenance 

Divisions. 

2.   Thank you letter from a resident to the Public Services, Utility Division. 

3.   Thank you email from a resident to the Utility Billing division within the Finance Department. 

 

ADJOURNMENT – There being no further business the meeting adjourned at 2:45 p.m. 

 

 

 

 

        ___________________________ 

        Joseph E. Kilsheimer, Mayor 

ATTEST: 

 

 

___________________________ 

Linda F. Goff, City Clerk 

25



  
 

Backup material for agenda item: 

 

1. Authorize execution of the Sewer and Water Capacity Agreement for Carriage Hill subdivision. 
  

26



 

CITY OF APOPKA 

CITY COUNCIL 
 

 
 

X CONSENT AGENDA  MEETING OF: August 16, 2017 

 PUBLIC HEARING  FROM: Community Development 

 SPECIAL REPORTS  EXHIBITS: Vicinity Map 

 OTHER:   Agreement 
  
SUBJECT:  CARRIAGE HILL (72 LOTS)  

   

REQUEST:  AUTHORIZE THE MAYOR OR HIS DESIGNEE TO EXECUTE A SEWER 

AND WATER CAPACITY AGREEMENT FOR CARRIAGE HILL (72 LOTS) 
  
SUMMARY: 
 

The City’s standard Sewer and Water Capacity Agreement has been prepared for Carriage Hill, located 

2303 Rogers Road (east of Rogers Road and north of Lester Road). 

  
FUNDING SOURCE:   
 
N/A 
   
RECOMMENDATION ACTION: 
 

Authorize the Mayor or his designee to execute the Sewer and Water Capacity Agreement for Carriage Hill. 
  
DISTRIBUTION 
Mayor Kilsheimer    Finance Director  Public Services Director  
Commissioners      HR Director   Recreation Director    
City Administrator    IT Director   City Clerk  
Community Development Director  Police Chief   Fire Chief 
  

27



CITY COUNCIL – AUGUST 16, 2017 
CARRIAGE HILL - SEWER AND WATER CAPACITY AGREEMENT  
PAGE 2 

 

CARRIAGE HILL 
JTD Land at Rogers Rd., LLC 

Parcel ID No’s: 29-20-28-0000-00-004 & 29-20-28-0000-00-026 
Total Acres: 30.58 +/- 

 

 

VICINITY MAP 
 

 

 

Subject Properties 

28



29



30



31



32



33



34



35



36



37



38



39



40



41



42



43



44



45



46



47



48



49



50



51



52



53



54



55



56



57



58



59



  
 

Backup material for agenda item: 

 

2. Approve the serving of wine for a Wings & Wine event at the Museum of Apopkans. 
  

60



 

CITY OF APOPKA 

CITY COUNCIL 
 

 
 

  X   CONSENT AGENDA      MEETING OF: August 16, 2017 

___ PUBLIC HEARING      FROM:  Administration 

       SPECIAL REPORTS      EXHIBITS: None 

       OTHER:         
  

 

SUBJECT: ALCOHOL SERVICE AT WINGS & WINE EVENT 

 

REQUEST: APPROVE SERVING OF ALCOHOL AT WINGS & WINE EVENT AT THE 

MUSEUM OF APOPKANS ON AUGUST 31, 2017. 
  
SUMMARY:  
 

On August 31, the Apopka Historical Society intends to hold an event titled “Wings & Wine” at the 

Museum of the Apopkans. The event will feature a speaker from Apopka’s Avian Reconditioning Center. 

With Council approval, wines with avian-themed labels would be served as refreshment. 

 

On September 3, 2014, City Council adopted Ordinance No. 2376 which requires City Council approval 

for the sale, consumption and carrying of alcoholic beverages on City-owned property during events or 

programs. 
  
FUNDING SOURCE: 
 

N/A    
RECOMMENDATION ACTION: 
 

Approve serving of alcohol at Wings & Wine event at the Museum of Apopkans on August 31, 2017. 
  
DISTRIBUTION 
Mayor Kilsheimer    Finance Director  Public Services Director  

Commissioners      HR Director   Recreation Director    

City Administrator    IT Director   City Clerk  

Community Development Director  Police Chief   Fire Chief 
 

61



  
 

Backup material for agenda item: 

 

3. Approval for Alcohol Sales at the Summer BBQ Showdown & Steak Cookoff. 
  

62



 

CITY OF APOPKA 

CITY COUNCIL 
 

 
 

 X   CONSENT AGENDA      MEETING OF:  August 16, 2017 

___ PUBLIC HEARING      FROM:  Administration 

       SPECIAL REPORTS      EXHIBITS:   

       OTHER:  
  

 

 

SUBJECT: PROVISION OF ALCOHOL SALES AND SERVICE AT THE SUMMER BBQ 

SHOWDOWN AND STEAK COOKOFF. 

 

REQUEST: APPROVAL OF ALCOHOL SALES AND SERVICE AT THE NORTHWEST 

RECREATION COMPLEX SEPTEMBER 7 - 9, 2017. 
 

  
 

SUMMARY:  

 

The City is promoting a BBQ event at the Northwest Recreation Complex in September.   

 

The “Apopka Summer BBQ Showdown and Steak Cookoff presented by Flame Boss,” will include some 

of the State's best competition BBQ cook teams in a Florida BBQ Association event.  Additionally, there 

will be a steak contest sanctioned by the U.S. Steak Cookoff Association.  Other events over the 

competition weekend include a truck show with dozens of entries from around Central Florida, and a 

movie at the Apopka amphitheater.  

 

The City Council adopted Ordinance No. 2376 which requires Council approval for the sale, 

consumption, and carrying of alcoholic beverages on City-owned property during events or programs.   

  
 

FUNDING SOURCE: 
 

Not Applicable. This is a self-funding event. 

    
 

RECOMMENDATION ACTION: 
 

Approve the associated alcohol service for the duration of the event.  

 
  
 

DISTRIBUTION 
Mayor Kilsheimer    Finance Director  Public Services Director  

Commissioners      HR Director   Recreation Director    

City Administrator    IT Director   City Clerk  

Community Development Director  Police Chief   Fire Chief 
 63



  
 

Backup material for agenda item: 

 

4. Accept Notification of Application for the Edward Byrne Memorial Justice Assistance Grant Program. 
  

64



 

CITY OF APOPKA 

CITY COUNCIL 
 

 
 

 X   CONSENT AGENDA      MEETING OF:  August 16, 2017 

___ PUBLIC HEARING      FROM:  Police Department 

       SPECIAL REPORTS      EXHIBITS:   

       OTHER:  
  

 

 

SUBJECT: NOTIFICATION OF APPLICATION FOR FISCAL YEAR 2017 EDWARD 

BYRNE MEMORIAL JUSTICE ASSISTANCE GRANT (JAG) PROGRAM. 

 

REQUEST: THE POLICE DEPARTMENT IS SUBMITTING AN APPLICATION TO 

RECEIVE $12,750 IN GRANT FUNDING TOWARD THE PURCHASE OF 100 

LED LIGHT SYSTEMS TO BE MOUNTED ON ALL APOPKA POLICE 

DEPARTMENT ISSUED RIFLES. 
 

  
 

SUMMARY:  

 

Through this grant, the Apopka Police Department will be enhancing its capabilities by providing police 

personnel with rifle lighting equipment.   

 

Poor lighting handicaps the police officer’s performance in many ways. The officer’s ability to navigate in 

unfamiliar terrain, locate potential problems, and quickly assess a threat are all degraded under low light 

conditions. Regardless of lighting factors, officers must have the ability to quickly discriminate between 

imminent threats and persons who are not armed and present no threat.  Failing to observe an imminent 

threat could result in the police officer being harmed, while failing to recognize the exact nature of an 

object in a subject’s hand can result in an unarmed civilian being harmed. 

 

Traditionally, officers are trained to shoot their weapons during low-light situations with a handheld 

flashlight. Coordinating a handgun in one hand and a flashlight in the other can be a challenging task.  

Improvements in weapon design and technology have recently helped law enforcement by producing 

weapons with mounts where a small LED flashlight can be affixed.  This creates easier access and 

efficiency by automatically lining up the muzzle of the weapon with an illumination source.  Essentially, 

where the weapon goes, the light goes.  Under extreme stress, it’s far easier for a police officer to 

discriminate threats with a handgun already affixed with an LED light than attempting to coordinate a 

handheld flashlight.  For this reason, all Apopka Police Officers are issued, and train with, handguns 

mounted with a high quality LED light.  Although all Apopka Police Officers are issued rifles as well, 

none, with the exception of our SWAT team operators, are issued mounted lights for them. 

 

With an increasing number of “active shooter” events occurring every year in this country, as well as 

abroad, the Apopka Police Department has taken a proactive approach in training its members on how to 

tactically respond should one of these unfortunate events occur here.  During training, we teach our 

officers to deploy to these situations with their issued rifles.  In an attempt to make training as close as 

possible to the reality of today’s current events, we train in real-world places like local churches, 

businesses, and schools.  One of the biggest drawbacks we have found during training is the inability to 65



easily see into darkened environments, such as, hallways, classrooms, and closets where a potential threat, 

or innocent person, could be hiding.  Currently, in order to successfully do this, an officer would have to 

reach for their handheld flashlight and illuminate the room looking for potential threats.  To do this, while 

holding a rifle is difficult and creates an officer and civilian safety issue. 

 

This grant will allow the agency to equip every member with a weapons mounted light system for their 

issued rifle.  This equipment is a vast improvement because it enhances the officers’ tactical capabilities 

and provides an added measure of officer and civilian safety.  Keeping our officers safe and efficient 

ultimately allows them to provide a higher level of service to the community. 

  

  
 

FUNDING SOURCE: 
 

N/A 

    
 

RECOMMENDATION ACTION: 
 

Authorize the Police Chief to move forward with the proposed grant. 

 
  
 

DISTRIBUTION 
Mayor Kilsheimer    Finance Director  Public Services Director  

Commissioners      HR Director   Recreation Director    

City Administrator    IT Director   City Clerk  

Community Development Director  Police Chief   Fire Chief 
 

66



67



  
 

Backup material for agenda item: 

 

1. Acceptance of a Trails Grant and the required funding match at Kit Land Nelson Park. Shakenya Jackson 
  

68



 

CITY OF APOPKA 

CITY COUNCIL 
 

 
 

       CONSENT AGENDA      MEETING OF:  August 16, 2017 

___ PUBLIC HEARING      FROM:              Administration 

       SPECIAL REPORTS      EXHIBITS:       Award Notification 

  X  OTHER: BUSINESS           Ord. 2561 Staff Report 

                Preliminary Site Plan 
  

 

SUBJECT: RECREATIONAL TRAILS GRANT PROGRAM 

 

REQUEST: MONETARY MATCH REQUIREMENT FOR FLORIDA DEPARTMENT OF 

ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION  
  
SUMMARY:  

 

On March 15, 2017, City Council approved the second reading of Ordinance No. 2561 which amended 

the Capital Improvement Plan to include the fitness trail/track in Kit Land Nelson Park as it was a 

requirement of the grant application process. 

 

The Florida Department of Environmental Protection has awarded the City $120,000 to Construct  a 10' X 

2,900 Linear Foot concrete fitness trail in Kit Land Nelson Park with the installation of additional 

landscaping, lighting, and parking spaces. 

 

The fitness trail will support non-motorized activities such as bicycling, skating, walking, and fitness 

activities. The Match requirement is $80,000. The estimated project cost is $200,000.  

  
FUNDING SOURCE: 

 

Each fiscal year, employee positions within the General Fund are vacant.  Although fully funded within 

the budget, a portion is always left over.  A recent check of these accounts show there will be much more 

than the required match left over at September 30, 2017 that can be transferred to the Grant Fund for this 

specific use.   
    
RECOMMENDATION ACTION:  
 

Accept the grant and approve the match requirement of $80,000. 
  
DISTRIBUTION 
Mayor Kilsheimer    Finance Director  Public Services Director  

Commissioners      HR Director   Recreation Director    

City Administrator    IT Director   City Clerk  

Community Development Director  Police Chief   Fire Chief 
 

69



T17030 City of Apopka, Kit Land Nelson Park 

Department staff, the RTP Advisory Committee, the Department of Environmental Protection, and the Federal Highway 

Administration have completed the review of the subject application and has made an eligibility determination pursuant 

to Rule 62S-2.072(5), F.A.C.  

Congratulations!  Your 2017 Recreational Trails Program application(s) has been selected by the for funding. There will 

be a very short timeline to get Agreements executed this year. 

 To prepare recipients for funding, staff is sending out a list of required documents, the elements to be included in the 

Grant Work Plan, and the Agreement for review. The following documents will be required prior to execution of an 

Agreement: 

1. Proof of Insurance 

2. Proof of Ability to Match (letter from CFO) 

3. Federal Funding Accountability and Transparency Act (FFATA) Form with 9 digit DUNS number (attached). Please 

ensure all 9 digits are shown on the form.  

4. Estimated timeline for Project completion to include return of signed Agreement, design and permitting, bid process, 

and completion of construction. All Agreements must be signed and returned no later than October 27, 2017, unless 

otherwise approved. 

5. All recipients must have ACTIVE registration on My Florida Market Place.  

Before the Project Agreement can be executed, the Land & Recreation Grants Section staff will need to confirm the 

Grant Work Plan information that was submitted within your RTP application. These details will then become your 

“Attachment A – Grant Work Plan” to your forthcoming RTP Project Agreement. Please review and confirm the 

following elements are correct: 

Construction 10' X 2,900 LF (+/- 10%) concrete fitness trail; Purchase and installation of landscaping and additional 

lighting. 

 If there are any pre-agreement costs that are expected for this project – they MUST be included in the grant 

work plan.  In addition, cost incurred invoices must also be provided to the Department upfront for review and will be 

specified in the grant agreement.  

 Notify the RTP Program Manager if Project planning expenses, such as application preparation, architectural and 

engineering fees, permitting fees, project inspection, and other similar fees are to be included in reimbursement. These 

elements must be included in the grant work plan to receive reimbursement. Such costs cannot exceed fifteen percent 

of the total project cost. 

 What you list on your Project Work Plan will dictate what costs you will be reimbursed for when your project has 

been completed. 

 If you have secured the services of a consultant, please make sure you are aware of what they’ve placed in your 

application. It is ultimately the responsibility of the sponsor to understand your project’s scope of work. Sponsors will 

be expected to develop these facilities as specified. 

Note: For Agreements with governmental boards/commissions:  If someone other than the Chairman signs this 

Agreement, a resolution, statement or other document authorizing that person to sign the Agreement on behalf of the 

Grantee must accompany the Agreement.  

Should you have questions or need assistance, please do not hesitate to contact Pam Lister, 

pamela.lister@dep.state.fl.us or 850-245-2501.  
70



71



72



25'

SCALE: 1" = 50'

50'0

CONST. CONCRETE WALKWAY

(10' WIDTH - 6" THICKNESS)

CONST. CONCRETE WALKWAY

(10' WIDTH - 6" THICKNESS)

CONST. CONCRETE WALKWAY

(10' WIDTH - 6" THICKNESS)

CONST. CONCRETE WALKWAY

(10' WIDTH - 6" THICKNESS)

CONST. CONCRETE WALKWAY

(10' WIDTH - 6" THICKNESS)

CONST. CONCRETE WALKWAY

(10' WIDTH - 6" THICKNESS)

CONST. CONCRETE WALKWAY

(10' WIDTH - 6" THICKNESS)

CONST. CONCRETE WALKWAY

(10' WIDTH - 6" THICKNESS)

CONST. CONCRETE WALKWAY

(6' WIDTH - 6" THICKNESS)

CONST. CONCRETE WALKWAY

(10' WIDTH - 6" THICKNESS)

CONST. CONCRETE WALKWAY

(10' WIDTH - 6" THICKNESS)

CONST. CONCRETE WALKWAY

(6' WIDTH - 6" THICKNESS)

CONST. CONCRETE WALKWAY

(10' WIDTH - 6" THICKNESS)

CONST. CONCRETE WALKWAY

(10' WIDTH - 6" THICKNESS)

CONST. CONCRETE WALKWAY

(10' WIDTH - 6" THICKNESS)

CONST. CONCRETE WALKWAY

(10' WIDTH - 6" THICKNESS)

CONST. CONCRETE WALKWAY

(10' WIDTH - 6" THICKNESS)

CONST. CONCRETE WALKWAY

(6' WIDTH - 6" THICKNESS)

CONST. CONCRETE WALKWAY

(5' WIDTH - 6" THICKNESS)

CONST. CONCRETE WALKWAY

(10' WIDTH - 6" THICKNESS)

CONST. CONCRETE WALKWAY

(10' WIDTH - 6" THICKNESS)

CONST. CONCRETE WALKWAY

(8' WIDTH - 6" THICKNESS)

CONST. CONCRETE WALKWAY

(10' WIDTH - 6" THICKNESS)

CONST. CONCRETE WALKWAY

(10' WIDTH - 6" THICKNESS)

CONST. CONCRETE WALKWAY

(10' WIDTH - 6" THICKNESS)

CONST. CONCRETE WALKWAY

(10' WIDTH - 6" THICKNESS)

CONST. CONCRETE WALKWAY

(10' WIDTH - 6" THICKNESS)

CONST. CONCRETE WALKWAY

(10' WIDTH - 6" THICKNESS)

73



  
 

Backup material for agenda item: 

 

2. Final Development Plan – Shoot Straight Warehouse Addition –1351 Tropicana Circle – Quasi-Judicial  David 
Moon 

  

74



 
CITY OF APOPKA 

CITY COUNCIL 
 

 
 

 CONSENT AGENDA  MEETING OF: August 16, 2017 

X PUBLIC HEARING  FROM: Community Development 

 SPECIAL REPORTS  EXHIBITS: Vicinity/Aerial Maps 

X OTHER:  Final Development Plan  Site/Landscape Plan 

    Architectural Renderings 
  
SUBJECT:    FINAL DEVELOPMENT PLAN - SHOOT STRAIGHT WAREHOUSE 

ADDITION – PHASE 4 

    

REQUEST:  APPROVE FINAL DEVELOPMENT PLAN FOR SHOOT STRAIGHT 
WAREHOUSE ADDITION – PHASE 4. 

  
SUMMARY:  

 
OWNER/APPLICANT: Shoot Straight Holding Co., LLC 
 
ENGINEER:   American Civil Engineering Co., c/o John Herbert, P.E. 
 
LOCATION: 1351 Tropicana Circle (generally located north of Kenneth Street, east of S 

Orange Blossom Trail). 
 
PARCEL ID NUMBERS: 13-21-28-5300-02-040; 13-21-28-5300-02-060; 13-21-28-5300-02-018;  

13-21-28-5300-02-080 
 
LAND USE:   Commercial 
 
ZONING:   C-1 
 
EXISTING USE:  Vacant (former Mobile Home Park was demolished)  
 
PROPOSED USE:  Expansion of Shoot Straight indoor gun range & firearm sales  
 
TRACT SIZE:   3.8 +/- acres development site\ 6.37 acres overall 
 
BUILDING SIZE:  32,856 S.F. 
 
BUILDING HEIGHT: 24 feet 
 
FLOOR AREA RATIO: 0.12  
  
FUNDING SOURCE:   

 

N/A 
  
DISTRIBUTION 
Mayor Kilsheimer    Finance Director  Public Services Director  
Commissioners      HR Director   Recreation Director    
City Administrator    IT Director   City Clerk  
Community Development Director  Police Chief   Fire Chief 
 

75



CITY COUNCIL – AUGUST 16, 2017 

SHOOT STRAIGHT WAREHOUSE EXPANSION, PHASE 4 - FINAL DEVEWLOPMENT PLAN 
PAGE 2 
 

 

RELATIONSHIP TO ADJACENT PROPERTIES: 

 

Direction Future Land Use Zoning Present Use 

North (City) Residential Medium (0-10 du/ac) A-1 (ZIP) Vacant 

East (County) Rural (0-1 du/10 ac) A-1 Vacant 

South (City) Commercial (max 0.25 FAR) C-2 R-O-W, Retail & Billboard 

West (City) Commercial (max 0.25 FAR) C-1 Retail & Gun Range (Shoot Straight) 

 

ADDITIONAL COMMENTS:  The Final Development Plan proposes 32,856 square feet of additional 

commercial retail next to an existing 30,000 +/-sq. ft. of retail commercial\warehousing.  The site is located 

north of Tropicana Circle and east of Orange Blossom Trail 

  

PARKING:  A total of 39 parking spaces are being added to the site to for Phase 4 in accordance with LDC 

6.03.02. Two (2) of the 39 parking spaces are reserved as handicapped parking spaces.  The overall 

combined number of parking spaces for Phases 1-4 is 117. The total is also in accordance with LDC 6.03.02.   

 

EXTERIOR ELEVATIONS:  The design of the building exterior meets the intent of the City’s 

Development Design Guidelines.  Architectural renderings appear at the last page of the Final Development 

Plan. Exterior colors will be the same as the existing buildings. 

   

STORMWATER:  Stormwater run-off and drainage will be accommodated by an on-site retention pond.  

The on-site stormwater management system is designed to meet standards set forth in the Land 

Development Code.  

  

BUFFER/TREE PROGRAM:   A minimum ten foot landscape buffer is provided along Orange Blossom 

Trail and Tropicana Circle. The applicant has provided a detailed landscape and irrigation plan for the 

property. The planting materials and irrigation system design are consistent with the water-efficient 

landscape standards set forth in Ordinance No. 2069.   
 
The following is a summary of the tree replacement program for this project: 
  
Total inches on-site:      1,054 
Total number of specimen trees:       28 
Total specimen removed:         13  
Total specimen inches retained:       48    
Total specimen inches removed:     357 
Total non-specimen inches removed:     551    
Total non-specimen inches retained:        98 
Total inches replaced:          27 
Total inches post development:  1,054 
 
TREE PROGRAM:  The City’s Land Development Code and Tree Bank policy permit the applicant to 
make a contribution to the City’s Tree Bank to mitigate the remaining deficient tree inches at $10.00 per 
inch. The total amount required to be paid into the Tree Bank will be $4,068 dollars. 
 

 76



CITY COUNCIL – AUGUST 16, 2017 

SHOOT STRAIGHT WAREHOUSE EXPANSION, PHASE 4 - FINAL DEVEWLOPMENT PLAN 
PAGE 3 
 

 
PUBLIC HEARING SCHEDULE: 
August 8, 2017 – Planning Commission (5:30 pm) 

August 16, 2017 - City Council (7:00 pm)  

   
RECOMMENDATION ACTION:  
 
The Development Review Committee finds the Final Development Plan to be consistent with the approved 
Preliminary Development Plan and Land Development Code, recommending approval of the Shoot Straight 
Warehouse Phase 4 - Final Development Plan subject to the findings of this staff report. 
 

The Planning Commission, at its meeting on August 8, 2017, unanimously recommended   approval of the 

Shoot Straight Phase 4 Final Development Plan, subject to the findings of this staff report. 

 

City Council Recommendation:  Approve the Shoot Straight Phase 4 Final Development Plan. 

 

Note: This item is considered quasi-judicial.  The staff report and its findings are to be incorporated 

into and made a part of the minutes of this meeting. 

  

77



CITY COUNCIL – AUGUST 16, 2017 

SHOOT STRAIGHT WAREHOUSE EXPANSION, PHASE 4 - FINAL DEVEWLOPMENT PLAN 
PAGE 4 
 
 

Application:  Shoot Straight Warehouse Addition Phase 4 – Final Development Plan 
Owner/Applicant:  Shoot Straight Holding Co., LLC 

Engineer:  American Civil Engineering Co., c/o John Herbert, P.E. 
Parcel I.D. No’s:    13-21-28-5300-02-040; 13-21-28-5300-02-060; 13-21-28-5300-02-018;  

13-21-28-5300-02-080 
Location:  1351 Tropicana Circle 
Total Acres:   3.8 +/- Acres  

 

VICINITY MAP 

 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Subject 

Property

78



CITY COUNCIL – AUGUST 16, 2017 

SHOOT STRAIGHT WAREHOUSE EXPANSION, PHASE 4 - FINAL DEVEWLOPMENT PLAN 
PAGE 5 
 

 
 

AERIAL MAP 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 
 

79



80



81



82



83



84



85



86



87



88



89



90



91



92



93



94



95



96



  
 

Backup material for agenda item: 

 

3. Plat – First Street Retail Center Plat (aka Tractor Supply Site) –180 East 1st Street – Quasi-Judicial   David 
Moon 

  

97



 

CITY OF APOPKA 

CITY COUNCIL 
 

 
 

 CONSENT AGENDA  MEETING OF: August 16, 2017 

X PUBLIC HEARING  FROM: Community Development 

 SPECIAL REPORTS  EXHIBITS: Vicinity Map 

X OTHER: Subdivision Plan  Aerial Map 

    Final Plat 
  
SUBJECT:    PLAT - FIRST STREET RETAIL CENTER PLAT (AKA TRACTOR 

SUPPLY SITE) 

    

REQUEST:  APPROVE THE FIRST STREET REATAIL CENTER PLAT 
  
SUMMARY:  
 
OWNER:   Michael L. Hart, Margie A. Hart and Apopka Regional Properties, LLP 
 
ENGINEER:                         Hanlex Civil, LLC 
 
LOCATION: 180 West 1st Street (South of 1st Street and East of Washington Avenue) 

 
PARCEL ID NUMBERS: 09-21-28-0196-10-040, 09-21-28-0196-10-064 and 09-21-28-0196-10-122 
 
FUTURE LAND USE: Commercial 
 
ZONING: C-2 
 
EXISTING USE:                    Horticultural Nursery 
 
PROPOSED USE:  Retail Center 
 
TRACT SIZE:   3.09 +/- Acres (S.F.) 
   
BUILDING SIZE: 19,027 S.F. and 18,000 Outdoor Display Area 
 
BUILDING HEIGHT: 30 Feet  
 
FLOOR AREA RATIO: 0.14 
  
FUNDING SOURCE:   

 

N/A 

 
  
DISTRIBUTION 
Mayor Kilsheimer    Finance Director  Public Services Director  
Commissioners      HR Director   Recreation Director    
City Administrator    IT Director   City Clerk  
Community Development Director  Police Chief   Fire Chief 

 98



CITY COUNCIL – AUGUST 16, 2017 
FIRST STREET RETAIL CENTER PLAT (AKA TRACTOR SUPPLY SITE) 
PAGE 2 

 

RELATIONSHIP TO ADJACENT PROPERTIES: 

 

Direction Future Land Use Zoning Present Use 

North (City) Commercial PO/I Office Building and Residential Duplex 

East (City) Office PO/I SFR (4) 

South (City) Commercial C-2 Gas Station and Automotive Repair 

West (City) Commercial C-2 Retail and Warehouse Buildings 

         

ADDITIONAL COMMENTS:  The Fist Street Retail Center Plat covers the property occupied by the 

Tractor Supply- Apopka - Final Development Plan, which was approved by City Council on December 21, 

2016 for 19,027 square feet of commercial retail space with and 18,000 square feet outdoor display area.   

To consolidate existing lots into one parcel, the plat performs as a replat to create one unified development 

parcel. The 3.9 acres site is located south of West 1st Street and East of Washington Ave.  The plat will 

consolidate several lots into one lot to unify the property ownership and eliminate lot lines crossing the 

development site. 

 

PUBLIC HEARING SCHEDULE: 
August 8, 2017 – Planning Commission (5:30 pm) 

August 16, 2017- City Council (7:00 pm) 

   
RECOMMENDATION ACTION:  
 
The Development Review Committee the  First Street Retail Center Plat  to be consistent with the 
Comprehensive Plan, Land Development Code, and Tractor Supply Final Development Plan and 
recommends the approval of the First Street Retail Center Plat, subject to the findings of this staff report 
and conditions of approval. 
 

The Planning Commission, at its meeting on August 8, 2017, found the First Street Retail Center Plat 

consistent with the Comprehensive Plan, Land Development Code, and Final Development Plan; and 

unanimously recommended approval of the First Street Retail Center Plat, subject to the findings of this 

staff report and conditions of approval. 

 

City Council:    Approve the First Street Retail Center Plat. 

 

Note: This item is considered quasi-judicial.  The staff report and its findings are to be incorporated 

into and made a part of the minutes of this meeting. 

  

99



CITY COUNCIL – AUGUST 16, 2017 
FIRST STREET RETAIL CENTER PLAT (AKA TRACTOR SUPPLY SITE) 
PAGE 3 

 
Application:  First Street Retail Center Plat 
Owner:   Michael L. Hart, Margie A. Hart and Apopka Regional Properties, LLP 

Applicant:  Hanlex First Street, LLC 

Engineer:  Hanlex Civil, LLC 
Parcel I.D. No’s:    09-21-28-0196-10-040, 09-21-28-0196-10-064 and 09-21-28-0196-10-122 
Location:  180 East 1st Street 
Total Acres:   3.90 +/- Acres  
 
   

 

VICINITY MAP 

 

 100



CITY COUNCIL – AUGUST 16, 2017 
FIRST STREET RETAIL CENTER PLAT (AKA TRACTOR SUPPLY SITE) 
PAGE 4 

 

 

 

AERIAL MAP 
 

 

 

101



102



103



104



  
 

Backup material for agenda item: 

 

1. Ordinance No. 2582 – First Reading – Banning medical marijuana dispensing facilities - Legislative David Moon 
  

105



 
CITY OF APOPKA 

CITY COUNCIL 
 

 
 

 CONSENT AGENDA  MEETING OF: August 16, 2017 
X PUBLIC HEARING  FROM: Community Development 
 SPECIAL REPORTS  EXHIBITS: Proposed Ordinance No. 2582 
X OTHER:  Ordinance  Ordinance No. 2388 
  

SUBJECT:    ORDINANCE NO. 2582 - AMENDING THE CODE OF ORDINANCES, PART 
III, LAND DEVELOPMENT CODE, ARCTICLE III, SECTION 3.05, TO 
ESTABLISH A PROHIBITION OF MEDICAL MARIJUANA TREATMENT 
CENTER DISPENSING FACILITIES WITHIN THE BOUNDARIES OF THE 
CITY AS AUTHORIZED BY SECTION 381.986, FLORIDA STATUTES. 

    
REQUEST:  FIRST READING OF ORDINANCE NO. 2582 – AMENDMING THE CODE 

OF ORDINANCES, PART III, LAND DEVELOPMENT CODE, ARTICLE III, 
SECTION 3.05, TO ESTABLISH A PROHIBITION OF MEDICAL 
MARIJUANA TREATMENT CENTER DISPENSING FACILITIES 

  
SUMMARY:  
 
The City of Apopka adopted Ordinance 2388 on May 6, 2015 to regulate and govern the location and extent of 
the cultivation, processing and dispensing of cannabis and medical marijuana within the City of Apopka.  A 
need to regulate medical marijuana emerged on June 16, 2014, when Governor Scott signed the 
Compassionate Medical Cannabis Act of 2014 into law, allowing for the cultivation, processing and 
dispensing of low THC cannabis statewide, subject to local government zoning laws.  
 
The Florida Legislature passed new laws in 2017 regarding medical marijuana in reaction to a state-wide 
referendum approved in November 2016 to expand opportunities for the availability of marijuana for medical 
purposes.  Section 381.986 (11) of the Florida Statutes now states if medical marijuana treatment center 
dispensing facilities are not banned in the municipality, the municipality may not enact any ordinance which 
limits the number or the location of the dispensing facilities. This in effect is more restrictive than how a 
pharmacy is regulated in a municipality.  In summary, local governments can only regulate medical marijuana 
dispensaries in the same and equal manner that it regulates pharmacies.  The two must be treated the same 
under a local governments zoning laws and development standards. 
 
However, the Florida Legislature in 2017 also gave local governments the opportunity to ban medical 
marijuana dispensaries.  Whereas Florida law limits a local government’s ability to govern the location and 
extent of medical marijuana dispensaries within the City of Apopka; and whereas the impacts of such use on 
adjacent or nearby residential areas, schools, religious facilities, and government properties is uncertain; the 
Development Review Committee and City staff recommend that the City Council ban dispensaries until the 
City gains more information and knowledge regarding the impacts generated by medical marijuana 
dispensaries. 
 
Cultivation and processing of cannabis\medical marijuana is not affected by proposed Ordinance 2582.  These 
activities are allowed subject to regulations established through Ordinance 2388. 
  
FUNDING SOURCE:   
 
N/A 
  
DISTRIBUTION 
Mayor Kilsheimer    Finance Director  Public Services Director  
Commissioners      HR Director   Recreation Director    
City Administrator    IT Director   City Clerk  106



CITY COUNCIL – AUGUST 16, 2017 
ORDINANCE NO. 2582 – MEDICAL MARIJUANA DISPENSARY PROHIBITION 
PAGE 2 

 
Community Development Director  Police Chief   Fire Chief 

PUBLIC HEARING SCHEDULE: 

August 8, 2017 – Planning Commission (5:30 pm)  

August 16, 2017 – City Council 1st Reading (7:00 pm) 

September 6, 2017 – City Council 2nd Reading (1:30 pm) 

 

DULY ADVERTISED: 

July 21 & 28, 2017 – Public Hearing Notice\Ordinance Heading 

August 25, 2017 – Ordinance Heading  

   
RECOMMENDATION ACTION:  
 

The Development Review Committee recommends approval of the Proposed Ordinance 2582, Prohibiting 

Medical Marijuana Dispensaries within the City of Apopka. 

  

The Planning Commission, at its meeting on August 8, 2017, unanimously recommended approval of the 

amendment to the City of Apopka, Code of Ordinances, Part III, Land Development Code, Article III, Section 

3.05, to establish a prohibition of medical marijuana treatment center dispensing facilities. 

 

Accept the First Reading of Ordinance No. 2582 and Hold it Over for Second Reading and Adoption on 

September 6, 2017. 

 

Note: This item is considered legislative and establishes general policy.  The staff report and its 

findings are to be incorporated into and made a part of the minutes of this meeting. 

 

107



ORDINANCE NO. 2582 

AN ORDINANCE ESTABLISHING A PROHIBITION OF MEDICAL 

MARIJUANA TREATMENT CENTER DISPENSING FACILITIES 

WITHIN THE BOUNDARIES OF THE CITY AS AUTHORIZED BY 

SECTION 381.986, FLORIDA STATUTES; PROVIDING LEGISLATIVE 

FINDINGS; PROVIDING FOR CODIFICATION; MORATORIUM 

CONTINGENCY; SEVERABILITY, CONFLICTS AND AN EFFECTIVE 

DATE. 

WHEREAS, the City of Apopka has the authority to adopt this Ordinance pursuant to 

Article VIII of the Constitution of the State of Florida; Chapters 163 and 166, Florida Statutes; and 

Section 381.986, Florida Statute; and 

WHEREAS, potential adverse impacts on the health, safety, and welfare of residents and 

businesses from secondary effects associated with the sale and distribution of marijuana exists, 

potentially including; offensive odors, trespassing, theft, fire hazards, increased crime in and about 

the medical marijuana dispensing facility businesses, robberies, negative impacts on nearby 

businesses and residences, nuisance problems, and potential reduction in property values in the 

surrounding area; 

WHEREAS, certain of the above potential adverse impacts are accentuated by the current 

difficulties experiences by medical marijuana dispensing facility businesses in obtaining banking 

services for selling a substance in violation of federal law, necessitating such businesses to operate 

on a cash basis; and 

WHEREAS, there exists the potential for misappropriation and diversion of medical 

marijuana to non-medical uses; and 

WHEREAS, in 1996, the state of California became the first state to legalize the use of 

medical marijuana, and several other states subsequently enacted laws legalizing medical 

marijuana in various circumstances; and 

WHEREAS, the California Police Chiefs Association developed a Task Force on 

Marijuana Dispensing facilities that prepared the “White Paper on Marijuana Dispensing facilities” 

published in 2009 (“White Paper”); and 

WHEREAS, the White Paper examined the direct and indirect adverse impacts of 

marijuana in local communities and indicated that marijuana dispensing facilities may attract or 

cause ancillary crimes, and may result in adverse effects, such as marijuana smoking in public, the 

sale of other illegal drugs at dispensing facilities, loitering and nuisances, and increased traffic at 

dispensing facilities; and 

WHEREAS, the White Paper further indicates that the presence of marijuana dispensing 

businesses may contribute to the existence of a secondary market for illegal, street-level 

distribution of marijuana; and 

DRAFT 
 

108



ORDINANCE NO. 2582         DRAFT 
PAGE 2 
 

WHEREAS, the White Paper outlines the following typical complaints received from 

individuals regarding certain marijuana dispensing facility study areas; high levels of traffic going 

to and from the dispensing facilities, people loitering in the parking lot of the dispensing facilities, 

people smoking marijuana in the parking lot of the dispensing facilities; vandalism near dispensing 

facilities, and citizens worried that they may become a crime victim due to the proximity to 

dispensing facilities; and 

WHEREAS, the White Paper ultimately concludes that there are or may be adverse 

secondary effects created by the presence of medical marijuana dispensing facilities in 

communities; and 

WHEREAS, The Marijuana Policy Group has published a memorandum called 

“Municipal Dispensary Allocation; Florida” which evaluated the market need for medical 

marijuana dispensing facilities and the harmful consequences and secondary effects of 

oversaturation of medical marijuana dispensing facilities within the market place; and 

WHEREAS, the Marijuana Policy Group determined that Florida should have no more 

than one dispensing facility for each 50,000 residents and the optimal ratio is one dispensing 

facility per 67,222 residents.   The City of Apopka has an estimated population of 48,000 residents, 

well below the estimated ratios; and 

WHEREAS, Section 381.986 (11), Florida Statutes, authorizes a municipality to “ban 

medical marijuana treatment center dispensing facilities from being located within the boundaries 

of that municipality”; and 

WHEREAS, Section 381.986 (11) also states if medical marijuana treatment center 

dispensing facilities are not banned in the municipality, the municipality may not enact any 

ordinance which limits the number or the location of the dispensing facilities which are more 

restrictive than how a pharmacy is regulated in that municipality; and 

WHEREAS, based on the Marijuana Policy Groups analysis of optimal population ratios, 

the statutory restrictions placed on a municipality if they allow medical marijuana dispensaries 

within their jurisdiction, there is a rational basis for the City to exercise its authority under Section 

381.986 to ban medical marijuana treatment center dispensing facilities within the boundaries of 

the City; and 

WHEREAS, the City finds that this Ordinance is in the interests of public health, safety, 

and the welfare of its community. 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ENACTED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY 

OF APOPKA, FLORIDA:  

 

109



ORDINANCE NO. 2582         DRAFT 
PAGE 3 
 

SECTION 1: FINDINGS OF FACT.   The foregoing recitals are hereby ratified and 

confirmed as being true and correct and are hereby made a part of this ordinance. 

SECTION 2: DEFINITIONS 

(a) “Medical Marijuana Treatment Center Dispensing Facility” means any facility where 

medical marijuana, any product derived from medical marijuana, or any medical 

marijuana delivery device is dispensed at retail. 

SECTION 3: CREATED  

(a) Medical Marijuana Treatment Center Dispensing Facility ban. Medical Marijuana 

Treatment Center Dispensing Facilities are prohibited and shall not be located within 

the boundaries of the City.   The City shall not accept, process or approve any request 

or application for a development order, building permit or other approval associated 

with a proposed Medical Marijuana Treatment Center Dispensing Facility. 

SECTION 4: CODIFICATION.  This Ordinance shall be incorporated into the Apopka 

City Code.  Any section, paragraph number, letter and/or any heading may be changed or modified 

as necessary to effectuate the foregoing.   Grammatical, typographical and similar like errors may 

be corrected, and additions, alterations, and omissions not affecting the construction or meaning 

of this Ordinance or the City Code may be freely made. 

SECTION 5: MORATORIUM CONTINGENCY.  In the event Section 381.986, 

Florida Statute is amended or interpreted by a court of competent jurisdiction in a way as to 

eliminate or prevent the City’s ability to ban or prohibit Medical Marijuana Treatment Center 

Dispensing Facilities within the City limits, upon the effective date of such, an automatic one-year 

moratorium shall go into place on the acceptance, processing and approval of Medical Marijuana 

Treatment Center Dispensing Facilities (including by way of acceptance, proceeding and approval 

of applications for development orders and permits) within the City limits in order to give the City 

time to evaluate changes in the applicable law, the City’s ability to regulate such uses and activities 

and potentially enact local legislation regarding the same.  Such one-year moratorium may be 

terminated early through resolution or ordinance of the City Council. 

SECTION 6: SEVERABILITY.  If any section, subsection, sentence, clause, phrase, 

word or provision of this Ordinance is for any reason held invalid or unconstitutional by any court 

of competent jurisdiction, whether for substantive, procedural, or any other reason, such portion 

shall be deemed a separate, distinct and independent provision, and such holding shall not affect 

the validity of the remaining portions of this Ordinance. 

SECTION 7: CONFLICTS.   In the event of a conflict or conflicts between this Ordinance 

and any other Ordinance or provision of law, this Ordinance controls to the extent of the conflict, 

as allowable under the law.  

 

110



ORDINANCE NO. 2582         DRAFT 
PAGE 4 
 

SECTION 8: EFFECTIVE DATE.   This Ordinance shall become effective immediately 

upon adoption by the City Council of the City of Apopka, Florida.  

SECTION 9: INCLUSION INTO THE LAND DEVELOPMENT CODE.   It is the 

intent of the City Council that the provisions of this ordinance shall become and be made a part of 

the City of Apopka Land Development Code, re-arranged to meet existing codification, and that 

sections of this ordinance may be renumbered or re-lettered and the word “Ordinance” may be 

changed to “section”, “article”, “regulation”, or such other appropriate word or phrase in order to 

accomplish such intentions. 

 
READ FIRST TIME: August 16. 2017 
  
READ SECOND TIME 
AND ADOPTED: 

 
September 6, 2017 

 

 

Joseph E. Kilsheimer, Mayor 

 
ATTEST: 
 
 
________________________________ 
Linda G. Goff, City Clerk 
 
 
APPROVED as to form and legality for 
use and reliance by the City of Apopka, 
Florida. 
 
 
_________________________________ 
Clifford B. Shepard, City Attorney 
 
DULY ADVERTISED FOR PUBLIC HEARING:  

 

 

111



112



113



114



115



116



117



118



119



120



121



122



  
 

Backup material for agenda item: 

 

2. Resolution No. 2017-15 - Wireless Facilities in the Public Rights-of-Way.   Mayor Kilsheimer 
  

123



 

CITY OF APOPKA 

CITY COUNCIL 
 

 
 

       CONSENT AGENDA      MEETING OF:  August 16, 2017 

___ PUBLIC HEARING      FROM:               Mayor  

       SPECIAL REPORTS      EXHIBITS:        Resolution 

  x   OTHER: RESOLUTION 2017-15 
  

 

SUBJECT:  THE ADVANCED WIRELESS INFRASTRUCTURE DEPLOYMENT ACT 

 

REQUEST: SUPPORTING HOME RULE AUTHORITY TO LOCAL GOVERNMENTS FOR 

WIRELESS FACILITIES IN THE PUBLIC RIGHTS-OF-WAY 
  
SUMMARY: 

 

The Advanced Wireless Infrastructure Deployment Act (the “Act”) was signed into law by Governor Rick 

Scott and became effective July 1, 2017. The Act was a lobbyist and wireless industry-led initiative 

intentionally crafted to circumvent the authority of local governments to set rules, regulations and rates 

with respect to wireless facilities in the public rights-of-way.   No evidence was presented to establish that 

local government regulations or actions had in any way prevented or significantly delayed the deployment 

of advanced wireless communications infrastructure.  Additionally no evidence was presented to establish 

that local government involvement would impair the ability of wireless telecommunications providers to 

improve their wireless telecommunications networks. 

 

Along with other local governments of Orange County the resolution supports measures that advance 

wireless technology without eroding the ability of local governments to protect the best interest of their 

communities and constituents.  This is done by urging Florida Legislature to reconsider its position on 

local government involvement in the field of wireless telecommunications infrastructure installation and 

amend the Florida Statutes in order to restore “Home Rule” powers to local governments with respect to 

wireless facilities in the public rights-of-way.  Specifically “Home Rule” would allow collaborative 

development of design standards and specifications that empower local governments to devise customized 

wireless solutions that fit local conditions and, at the same time, provide for the rapid deployment of next-

generation technology. The intention is to promote effective technology infrastructure consistent with the 

community values of the wireless telecommunications industry customers. 

  
FUNDING SOURCE: 
 

N/A    
RECOMMENDATION ACTION: 
 

Adopt Resolution 2017-15. 
  
DISTRIBUTION 
Mayor Kilsheimer    Finance Director  Public Services Director  

Commissioners      HR Director   Recreation Director    

City Administrator    IT Director   City Clerk  

Community Development Director  Police Chief   Fire Chief 
 124



RESOLUTION NO. 2017-15 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY OF APOPKA, FLORIDA, 

OPPOSING THE EROSION OF HOME RULE AUTHORITY 

EFFECTED BY THE ADVANCED WIRELESS 

INFRASTRUCTURE DEPLOYMENT ACT; SUPPORTING THE 

HOME RULE AUTHORITY GRANTED AND GUARANTEED 

LOCAL GOVERNMENTS BY THE FLORIDA CONSTITUTION; 

ENCOURAGING THE FLORIDA LEGISLATURE TO RETURN 

FULL HOME RULE AUTHORITY TO LOCAL GOVERNMENTS 

WITH RESPECT TO WIRELESSFACILITIES IN THE PUBLIC 

RIGHTS-OF-WAY; EXPRESSING SOLIDARITY WITH 

OTHERLOCAL GOVERNMENTS OF ORANGE COUNTY, 

FLORIDA, IN SUPPORTING TECHNOLOGICAL 

ADVANCEMENT WHILE PRESERVING THE AUTHORITY OF 

LOCAL GOVERNMENTS TO ENACT REGULATIONS THAT 

PRESERVE AND PROTECT LOCAL COMMUNITY VALUES 

AND INTERESTS; PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

WHEREAS, The Advanced Wireless Infrastructure Deployment Act (the “Act”) was signed into 

law by Governor Rick Scott and became effective July 1, 2017; and 

WHEREAS, The Act was a lobbyist and wireless industry-led initiative intentionally crafted to 

circumvent the authority of local governmentsto set rules, regulations and rates with respect to wireless 

facilities in the public rights-of-way that are in their constituents’ best interests; and  

WHEREAS, no evidence was presented to establish that local government regulations or actions 

had in any way prevented or significantly delayed the deployment of advanced wireless communications 

infrastructure; and 

WHEREAS, no evidence was presented to establish that local government involvement would 

impair the ability of wireless telecommunications providers to improve their wireless telecommunications 

networks; and 

WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Apopka recognizes the importance of and 

encourages the technological advancement and effective infrastructure in the field of wireless 

telecommunications; and 

WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Apopka acknowledges that small cell wireless 

facilities is the next generation of wireless telecommunications technology; and 

WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Apopka recognizes that the advancement and 

facilitation of wireless telecommunications infrastructure consistent with the approvals, projects and local 

government investments related to their rights of way, is in the best interest of the City’s constituents; and 

WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Apopka, recognizes that the wireless industry finds 

it critical that the speed with which next-generation wireless technology is deployed is material and vital 

to business success of that technology; and  

WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Apopka, also appreciates the critical role local 

governments play in ensuring technological progress is consistent with the vision and values of the 

communities they represent and to protect the community’s investments in their community; and 

125



WHEREAS, the City Council opposes a one-size-fits-all approach to the installation of wireless 

telecommunications facilities within public rights-of-way, especially considering the great flexibility that 

exists in the potential size, type, location and installation methods for the types of facilities covered bythe 

Act and the unique characteristics of each local government; and 

WHEREAS, certain local governments have expended enormous resources on making their 

rights of way safe, attractive and functional in reliance on their ability to exercise their home rule 

authority over their rights of way; and  

WHEREAS, cities, towns and villages are voluntarily created and chartered by their citizens as 

the embodiment of local self-determination; and  

WHEREAS, no other level of government is more available or responsive to the voices of their 

constituents than local government; and 

WHEREAS, it is widely accepted that government closest to the people is most representative 

and effective; and  

WHEREAS, in recognition of the critical role local governments serve Florida voters in 1968 

amended the state constitution to confer broad "Home Rule" powers to municipal government, under 

Article VIII, Section 2(b); and  

WHEREAS, the Florida Legislature adopted the Home Rule Powers Act in 1973, which 

recognizes the broad Home Rule authority of cities and counties to adopt ordinances in the interests of the 

public health, safety, and welfare; and  

WHEREAS, local government is the most effective level of government to address the needs of 

individual communities during the roll-out of rapidly evolving technology; and 

WHEREAS, it is good practice and policy to allow local governments to enforce their existing, 

and adopt new rules, regulations and rates that meet the demands of their constituents so as to protect the 

community investments and maintain the uniqueness of their own communities; and  

WHEREAS, it is good practice and policy to encourage wireless telecommunications providers 

to engage with local governments to ensure that the installation of wireless facilities within public rights-

of-way is conducted in a manner consistent with the uniqueness of each local community and the values 

of local communities, rather than to circumvent local involvement in such a critical field; and 

WHEREAS, the Act significantly adversely impacts the authority of local governments to 

enforce existing and adopt effective rules, regulations and rates that encourage continued advancement in 

the field of wireless communications while protecting the values of their communities; and 

WHEREAS, the Act significantly impairs the ability of local governments to work with 

telecommunications providers to ensure installation of wireless technology within rights-of-way is 

conducted in a manner consistent with the values of the community; and 

WHEREAS, the Orange County Council of Mayors has called upon the local governments of 

Orange County, Florida to express aunified voice in supporting technological advancement that benefits 

their constituents while opposing continued state action that erodes their “Home Rule” powers. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 

APOPKA, FLORIDA, THAT:  

126



Section 1.  The foregoing "WHEREAS" clauses are hereby ratified and confirmed as being true 

and correct and are incorporated herein by this reference.  

Section 2.  The City Council of the City of Apopka urges the Florida Legislature to reconsider 

its position on local government involvement in the field of wireless 

telecommunications infrastructure installation as enacted in the Advanced Wireless 

Infrastructure Deployment Act and amend the Florida Statutes in order to restore 

“Home Rule” powers to local governments with respect to wireless facilities in the 

public rights-of-way.  

Section 3.  The City Council of the City of Apopka expresses its solidarity with the other local 

governments of Orange County, Florida, in supporting measures that advance 

wireless technology without eroding the ability of local governments to protect the 

best interests of their communities and constituents. 

Section 4.  The Council of the City of Apopka calls for the wireless telecommunications 

industry to work collaboratively with local governments to promote effective 

technology infrastructure consistent with the community values of their customers. 

Specifically, the Council supports the collaborative development of design standards 

and specifications that empower local governments to devise customized wireless 

solutions that fit local conditions and, at the same time, provide for the rapid 

deployment of next-generation technology. 

Section 5.  This Resolution shall become effective immediately upon its passage and adoption.  

ADOPTED THIS 16th DAY OF AUGUST, 2017. 

CITY OF APOPKA, FLORIDA 

 

 

______________________________ 

Joseph E. Kilsheimer, Mayor 

ATTEST:       

 

___________________________________   

Linda F. Goff, City Clerk   

 

 

127


	Top
	1. 08-16-17 - CC - APPROVAL OF MINUTES 7/10/17
	07-10-17 Budget WS Draft.pdf

	2. 08-16-17 - CC - APPROVAL OF MINUTES 7/12/17 
	07-12-17 Budget WS Draft.pdf

	3. 08-16-17 - CC - APPROVAL OF MINUTES 7/20/17 
	07-20-17 Sp Mtg Draft.pdf

	4. 08-16-17 - CC - APPROVAL OF MINUTES 8/2/17
	08-02-17 Draft.pdf

	1. 08-16-17 - CC - Presentation - PD Deputy Randy
	2. 08-16-17 - CC - Presentations - Eagle Scout Project Proposal: Michael Ihrig - Little Free Library Stations
	3. 08-16-17 - CC - Presentations - Eagle Scout Project Proposal: Adam Speck - Lake Avenue Park Paver Pathway &amp; Picnic Tables
	4. 08-16-17 - CC - Presentations - Eagle Scout Project Proposal: Connor Larson - Lake Avenue Park Bridge
	1. 08-16-17 - CC - Consent Agenda - Sewer &amp; Water Cap Agreement - Carriage Hill
	1 Carriage Hill Sewer &amp; Water Cap grnsht.pdf
	2 Carriage Hill Sewer &amp; Water Capacity Agreement.pdf

	2. 08-16-17 - CC - Consent- Alcohol Museum Event
	Mayor - 2017-08-16 CC Approve alcohol service at Museum fundraising event.docx

	3. 08-16-17 - CC - Consent-Alcohol Sales BBQ
	08-16-2017 Summer BBQ Event (3)GS.docx

	4. 08-16-17 - CC - Consent-Application for Grant Funding
	08-16-17 JAG Application LED Light System GS.docx
	08-16-17 JAG Application LED Light System.pdf

	1. 08-16-17 - CC - Business - KLN Trail Grant Funding
	Shakenya - Staff report for KLN Trail Grant.docx
	T17030 Award Memo-RTP.docx
	Ord. 2561 - CIP Amendment.pdf
	KLN Park Trails Program Preliminary Site Plan.pdf

	2. 08-16-17 - CC - Business (Action) - Final Development Plan - Shoot Straight Warehouse Addition
	1 Shoot Straight FDP CC  8-16-17.pdf
	2 Shoot Straight Warehouse FDP  7.21.17.pdf

	3. 08-16-17 - CC - Business (Action) - Plat - First Street Retail Center (aka Tractor Supply)
	1 First Street Retial Center Plat-Replat CC  8 16 17.pdf
	2 First Street Retail Center Plat-Replat.pdf
	3 Current Antiquated Plat.pdf

	1. 08-16-17 - CC - Ordinance - Ord. #2582 - 1st Rd - Banning Medical Marijuana Dispensaries
	CD - Med Marijuana Dispensary Prohibition - CC 08-16-17 1st Rd.docx
	2 Ord 2582 MED MARIJUANA dispense ban - draft (8-2-17).pdf
	3 Ord. 2388 - Signed.pdf

	2. 08-16-17 - CC - Resolution 2017-15 - Wireless Infrastructure
	Mayor - 08-16-17 - Resolution 2017-15 Staff Report.docx
	Mayor - OCCOM Communications Bill   Resolution REV 3 080817.doc

	Bottom

